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          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. I am Council Member Margarita Lopez, and I

          4  am the Chair of the Committee on Mental Health,

          5  Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and

          6  Disability Service.

          7                 I would like to welcome everyone here

          8  to this second hearing of the Committee on Mental

          9  Health and Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug

         10  Abuse and Disability Services on Intro. No. 261.

         11                 As we are joined by Council Members,

         12  I will ask my colleagues to introduce themselves as

         13  they get here.

         14                 Today the Committee will receive

         15  further testimony on Intro. No. 261, a proposed

         16  local law known as the Accessible Passenger Ferry

         17  Services Transportation Act.

         18                 As I had stated at the January

         19  hearing on this bill, I introduced this local law in

         20  September of 2002, after investigating many repeated

         21  complaints from people with disabilities, about

         22  barriers to access on public ferry boats,

         23  facilities, services and equipment.

         24                 The staff of my Committee conducted

         25  several fact-finding trips to survey the ferry
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          2  system in New York City. Starting in May 2002, with

          3  an ongoing check for accessibility with the most

          4  recent site visit on February 12th, 2003.

          5                 We have found substantial and

          6  continuum access barriers, and even recently

          7  revamped ferry terminals are inaccessible to many

          8  people with disabilities.

          9                 In the current ferry system, there

         10  exists a lack of standard and uniformity with regard

         11  to access to piers, terminal slips, vessels and

         12  ramps, such that wheelchair users or persons with

         13  disabilities cannot be sure whether they will be

         14  able to get on and off the pier slip equipment and

         15  ferries being used throughout New York City.

         16                 For example, at our most recent

         17  access check, we found that access barriers continue

         18  to exist at pier 11, which is located at Wall

         19  Street. We will show slides and pictures to

         20  illustrate the barriers.

         21                 Pier 11 is a major ferry hop that

         22  links many routes from Lower Manhattan Financial

         23  Center to points such as Port Liberty and the

         24  Colgate Palmolive Building in New Jersey, Port

         25  Imperial in Weehawken, New Jersey, Atlantic
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          2  Highlands on the Jersey Shore, Keyport in Monmouth,

          3  New Jersey, Liberty Harbor Marine and South Amboy,

          4  Glen Cove in Long Island, Hoboken in New Jersey and

          5  East 34 and 90th Street in Manhattan.

          6                 Because Pier 11 is an integral part

          7  of the metropolitan ferry system, a wheelchair

          8  accessible route through Pier 11 is essential to the

          9  City's system of ferry transportation.

         10                 Throughout an intermodal mass public

         11  transportation system that is interconnected, it is

         12  critical that both prospective and perspective ferry

         13  terminals equipment will be fully accessible.

         14                 Late in the Year 2000, the federal

         15  government architectural and transportation barriers

         16  compliance board, known as the Access Board, finally

         17  proposed a standard and specification for access for

         18  ferries and other waterborne vessels under the ADA.

         19                 However, the review process for those

         20  proposed federal regulations is lengthy in nature

         21  and has covered many different types of vessels,

         22  including large cargo and cruise ships, and the

         23  federal process require input from localities across

         24  the nation, with many competitive interests.

         25                 In particular, implementing this
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          2  proposed federal standards into law is subject to

          3  changing administration policies and process in

          4  Washington, D.C., such that many years must pass

          5  before these proposed federal regulations can become

          6  law.

          7                 Therefore, at this time the City

          8  cannot afford to wait for the Access Board to

          9  implement in standards on the federal level.

         10                 New York ferry system is rapidly

         11  expanding, and the Mayor's proposed ten-year capital

         12  strategy plan issue in January 2003, allocated over

         13  $74 million to the Department of Transportation for

         14  ferries.

         15                 A copy of this plan is attached as

         16  Exhibit A in the addendum to the Committee's report

         17  prepared by staff.

         18                 In addition, a New York Times article

         19  of April 2002, reported that more than $300 million

         20  worth of ferry projects are to be completed by the

         21  Year 2004.

         22                 As we hear at our joint hearing on

         23  January 21st, with the Committee on Transportation,

         24  shared by my colleague Council Member John Liu, the

         25  New York City ferry system will be an important
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          2  component of the Transportation system in place for

          3  the 2012 Olympics, and ParaOlympics, which is for

          4  athletes with disabilities.

          5                 We support the City for the 2012

          6  Olympics as it is an event that will bring

          7  significant economic development to our City.

          8                 In addition, at the January hearing,

          9  we also received testimony that the City expect to

         10  develop a campus for the City University of New York

         11  at Governor's Island, as well as crediting public

         12  beaches and recreation areas there.

         13                 The only practical way to travel to

         14  Governor's Island is by ferry services, and

         15  consequently the City must ensure disabled access

         16  for students, visitors and all New Yorkers wishing

         17  to travel to Governor's Island.

         18                 Now is the time for the City to make

         19  certain that people with disabilities are included

         20  and have access to the entire New York City ferry

         21  system.

         22                 On the American With Disabilities

         23  Act, the City and other entities that provide ferry

         24  services, facilities and vessels have a legal

         25  obligation to provide access in a non-discriminatory
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          2  manner as public accommodation.

          3                 Also, discuss at the January 21st

          4  hearing, Intro. No. 261 incorporates the access

          5  proposed standards and the specifications related to

          6  ferry transportation, and the bill reference the ADA

          7  accessibility guidelines, which provide industry

          8  standards for access in building and terminal

          9  design.

         10                 At that hearing the Committee

         11  received testimony in support of a ferry system of

         12  accessibility and Intro. 261 from experts on access,

         13  including representatives from the eastern paralyzed

         14  veteran association, who consulted with their

         15  architectural engineers and legal experts on the

         16  bill.

         17                 The New York Lawyers for Public

         18  Interest, the disability community and the companies

         19  that operate ferries in New York City waters.

         20                 Today we will receive testimony from

         21  the Administration, Department of Transportation,

         22  and those who were not able to testify at the

         23  January 21st hearing, such as members of the

         24  disabled community, including the blind, other ferry

         25  operators, the New York City Independent Budget
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          2  Office, who prepare a photo fiscal analysis report

          3  on Intro. No. 261, members of the community board

          4  and the public who wish to provide input in this

          5  legislation.

          6                 It is important to note that Intro.

          7  No. 261 will not only benefit disabled members of

          8  the public but it is particularly beneficial to

          9  seniors. The majority of the City population is

         10  aging, and is estimated to live into their late

         11  seventies and eighties. In reality they have a very

         12  good health at this point.

         13                 However, the significant population

         14  of elderly face a future of mobility impairments, as

         15  well as other disabling impairments, which are a

         16  natural part of the aging process.

         17                 This proposed local law, the

         18  Accessible Passenger Ferry Service Transportation

         19  Act, will set uniformed standard to ensure that all

         20  New Yorkers can access and safely ride the ferries.

         21                 The specific standard for

         22  accessibility, and safety provided in this proposed

         23  local law, complied with the ADA mandate of

         24  reasonable accommodation for the disabled, while

         25  addressing serious concerns of public welfare that
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          2  affect the passengers, of children and infants in

          3  strollers and baby carriages throughout the City

          4  ferry system. In particular, an accessibility route

          5  is of primary importance to ensuring the civil

          6  rights of people with disabilities.

          7                 Therefore, an inclusive City must

          8  seek to insure that waterborne passenger services

          9  and the ferry transportation industry minimize the

         10  tremendous and unfair burden placed on people with

         11  disabilities.

         12                 Disabled persons, like known disabled

         13  persons, use ferry transportation services for daily

         14  living activities, such as commuting to work,

         15  attending medical appointment, pursuing educational

         16  activities and enjoying cultural entertainment and

         17  other public events.

         18                 At the turn of the 21st Century, this

         19  City must vehemently emphasize the importance of

         20  access on safety by systematically protecting the

         21  right of individuals with disabilities to use this

         22  sector of public transportation system.

         23                 Unlike the subway system which was

         24  built in the early 20th century without

         25  consideration of disability access, the City now has
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          2  a unique opportunity to effectively and economically

          3  incorporate accessibility standards into the design

          4  and operation of this important emerging

          5  transportation system of this 21st Century.

          6                 It is critical in my opinion, and

          7  based on my principles and belief that the City

          8  should not allow any other services of our City to

          9  develop without total accessibility, and it's for

         10  that reason that this bill has been introduced.

         11                 I would like to welcome the

         12  Commissioner of the Transportation Department. I am

         13  very sad that I basically made her be here, and I

         14  apologize for that, because she have other things to

         15  do. We have a power point presentation planned for

         16  this hearing, but I am not going to do that. I am

         17  going to allow first the Commissioner to testify,

         18  and perhaps she had to leave before that power point

         19  presentation is in front of you, and I understand

         20  that she have other commitments.

         21                 I hope that in the future the kind of

         22  care and sensibility that I show to the Department

         23  be returned to me in the same fashion and the same

         24  manner.

         25                 Commissioner, I thank you for being
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          2  here today, before we proceed I would like to

          3  introduce the two people who are with me here

          4  because I think it's rude for people not to know who

          5  they are.

          6                 Please.

          7                 MS. EMERMAN: Anne Emerman, senior

          8  member of the Council, the Committee.

          9                 MS. BOLANOS: Maritza Bolanos. I'm the

         10  Counsel to the Committee on Mental Health and

         11  Disability Services.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you. And you

         13  can proceed, Commissioner.

         14                 MS. BOLANOS: Please raise your right

         15  hand.

         16                 Do you swear that the testimony

         17  you're about to provide before this Committee is the

         18  whole truth, and that you will answer Council member

         19  questions truthfully?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I do.

         21                 MS. BOLANOS: Thank you. Please

         22  proceed.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Thank you.

         24                 Good afternoon, Chairperson Lopez. My

         25  name is Iris Weinshall, and I am the Commissioner of
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          2  the New York City Department of Transportation.

          3                 Accompanying me this afternoon is

          4  Robert Grotell, the Deputy Commissioner for

          5  Passenger Transport for the Department of

          6  Transportation.

          7                 I am pleased to be here this

          8  afternoon to discuss Intro. No. 261, which would

          9  establish standards for ferries and ferry facilities

         10  with respect to persons with disabilities.

         11                 This is an issue of utmost importance

         12  to the City, and we at DOT are firmly committed to

         13  ensuring that persons with disabilities are provided

         14  equal and non-discriminatory access to ferries and

         15  ferry facilities.

         16                 We applaud the Council and

         17  Chairperson Lopez for pushing forward this important

         18  issue.

         19                 However, despite this commitment

         20  shared with the Council, we have reservations about

         21  this bill, which has overly broadened its scope,

         22  expensive to implement, unrealistic in its execution

         23  schedule, and ultimately unnecessarily disruptive to

         24  the 150,000 daily riders who rely on ferry services

         25  as their primary means of travel.
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          2                 Many of the concerns that are

          3  highlighted by the bill have either already been

          4  addressed by the City, or are in the process of

          5  being addressed.

          6                 As you know, the importance of New

          7  York's ferry system cannot be overstated. During the

          8  past several years, and especially following the

          9  attack of 9/11. New York's ferries have emerged as a

         10  popular and dependable form of transportation and

         11  have contributed greatly to the continued civility

         12  of the region. In fact, since 9/11, we have seen

         13  overall ferry usage grow by more than 35 percent.

         14                 New York's system of ferries is

         15  composed of both City-run ferries, as well as those

         16  run by private entities. The private ferry industry

         17  in New York consists of four companies carrying

         18  approximately 65,000 passengers daily, between more

         19  than 30 landing sites in eight municipalities in New

         20  York and New Jersey.

         21                 With the exception of temporary FEMA

         22  intervention, privately-operated ferry services are

         23  not subsidized and do not operate under contract to

         24  the City.

         25                 Of the approximately 30 ferry
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          2  landings, only about half are located within New

          3  York City. About half of these are on City property

          4  and the others are controlled either by private

          5  entities or by the Port Authority.

          6                 With the exception of the Staten

          7  Island ferry terminals, most of the City-owned

          8  landing sites were originally under the jurisdiction

          9  of the former Department of Ports and Trade.

         10                 In 1995, DOT, with the assistance of

         11  EDC, assumed management of these City-owned ferry

         12  landings.

         13                 Since then DOT has committed itself

         14  to improving these sites and has made enormous

         15  strides in increasing accessibility at existing and

         16  new ferry landings.

         17                 A major focus of our efforts in

         18  improving accessibility has been on piers and ferry

         19  slips.

         20                 One example of our commitment has

         21  been the continuous improvement with respect to

         22  wheelchair accessible slips.

         23                 Prior to 1995 these facilities were

         24  characterized by steps, barriers and exceedingly

         25  steep slopes. Today most City sites have wheelchair
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          2  accessible slopes, including East 34th Street, the

          3  Fulton Ferry Landing and Yankee Stadium, as well as

          4  the Staten Island Ferry Terminals, White Hall and

          5  St. George.

          6                 We're presently addressing the

          7  accessibility of slips. I am informed that two

          8  examples are in new design incorporating the

          9  American With Disabilities Act standards for East

         10  90th Street, and East 34th Street, and are scheduled

         11  to be bid out later this spring.

         12                 In addition, we are incorporating ADA

         13  accessibility standards into our new facilities

         14  under design. Slip five of the Battery Maritime

         15  building, East 67th Street, East 75th Street, Slip 7

         16  at St. George, and Pier 79 are new or reactivated

         17  facilities that are scheduled to begin construction

         18  this year, and I am pleased to report that all will

         19  be fully wheelchair accessible and will meet the

         20  federal standards.

         21                 Finally, the two new Staten Island

         22  ferry terminals under construction at White Hall and

         23  at St. George, had been designed and are being

         24  constructed to specifications, as required by the

         25  ADA and will be fully wheelchair accessible.
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          2                 Additionally, our three new Staten

          3  Island Ferry boats currently under construction

          4  incorporate ADA features throughout.

          5                 The following highlights some of the

          6  major improvements that the City has implemented

          7  over the past several years.

          8                 In 1996, the Yankee Stadium Ferry

          9  Landing opened. This landing is wheelchair

         10  accessible and ambulette services available to

         11  transport disabled passengers from the ferry landing

         12  to the stadium.

         13                 In 1997, the former East 34th Street

         14  barge which had been completely inaccessible and

         15  characterized by stairs, steep slopes, was replaced

         16  by a facility where most of the slips are

         17  accessible.

         18                 Although a few inaccessible slips

         19  remained, this will be corrected by a capital

         20  project that will commence later this year.

         21                 It should also be noted that this

         22  project will include wheelchair accessible

         23  restrooms.

         24                 Late 1999/2000, the new Pier 11, the

         25  Wall Street Ferry Pier, came on line. The new pier
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          2  introduced accessible slips, improved lighting,

          3  heated shelter and accessible restrooms.

          4                 2001, design commenced on capital

          5  projects for the new or upgraded facilities at Pier

          6  79, slip 7 at St. George and East River sites.

          7                 2002, DOT and EDC introduced the

          8  first hydraulic ramps downloading vessels at Pier

          9  11. FEMA granted approval for the upgrade of slip E,

         10  including a new ramping system to provide wheelchair

         11  access to the barge.

         12                 2003, slip E is to be upgraded and

         13  construction will commence for accessible facilities

         14  at Pier 79, East 34th Street, East 62nd Street, East

         15  75th Street, East 90th Street, the Battery Maritime

         16  building, Slip 5 and St. George Slip 7.

         17                 2003 to 2005 new facilities will be

         18  coming on line. A docking facility is accessible if

         19  there is an accessible pathway provided through a

         20  facility and across the floating dock, all of the

         21  way to the edge of the ferry.

         22                 The ferry is fully responsible for

         23  the transition of the passengers from the floating

         24  dock onto the vessel and for accommodation of

         25  passengers on the ferry itself.
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          2                 In order to make it easier for

          3  operators to manage this process of embarkation and

          4  disembarkation, the City has begun to make hydraulic

          5  ramps available at downloading slips.

          6                 The certification of vessels to carry

          7  passengers to the United States falls exclusively

          8  under the purview of the federal government, and

          9  this authority is exercised through the United

         10  States Coast Guard.

         11                 The federal government has not yet

         12  established regulatory standard for accessible ferry

         13  vessels. Nor has an ambiguous and unambiguous

         14  standards been set for the design of landing

         15  facilities.

         16                 In the absence of the clear ADA

         17  regulations for ferry docks, New York City at the

         18  forefront of this crucial issue has sought to

         19  anticipate these regulations and meet them in

         20  advance.

         21                 DOT acknowledges that there are

         22  significant reasons why the federal government has

         23  had a difficult task in trying to finalize such

         24  regulations.

         25                 Issues such as stability, emergency
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          2  egress, the need for water tight doors and transums,

          3  unusual hull shapes, the problem of vertical

          4  circulation in small vessels, the difficulty or

          5  possibility of retrofitting some existing vessels

          6  and the uniformed application of standards to a wide

          7  variety of ferry landings and vessels are all

          8  challenging.

          9                 Given the multi-jurisdictional and

         10  interstate nature of local ferry systems, these

         11  outstanding issues are best dealt with in the

         12  federal arena.

         13                 DOT urges the responsible federal

         14  agencies to move forward rapidly with a clear set of

         15  regulations and a practical time line for

         16  implementation.

         17                 We further call upon the ferry

         18  operators and terminal operators in other

         19  jurisdictions to continue and to accelerate the

         20  considerable progress that they had made in

         21  providing accessibility in these areas.

         22                 In conclusion, the City has already

         23  implemented, or has plans to implement much of what

         24  this bill seeks to accomplish - making ferries and

         25  ferry facilities accessible to people with
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          2  disabilities.

          3                 We welcome an opportunity to work

          4  with you, other elected officials, and interested

          5  private and governmental entities to further address

          6  issues of accessibility.

          7                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          8  testify before you today, and we would be happy to

          9  answer any questions at this time.

         10                 Council Member, I'd just like to also

         11  point out that there are members of the EDC staff

         12  here. As you know, or if you're aware, a lot of the

         13  construction that's being done on the ferry

         14  terminals are being done on behalf of DOT by EDC, so

         15  they're also here and available to answer questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I'm aware of that.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Good.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Before we proceed

         19  with the questioning, I would like the new people

         20  who arrived to introduce themselves, stating your

         21  name, the area from where you're representing New

         22  York City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Certainly.

         24  Thank you, Madam Chair. Council Member Eric

         25  Martin-Dilan, 37th District, Brooklyn.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Good

          3  afternoon.

          4                 Helen Foster, the 16th District of

          5  Bronx. I need to excuse myself because I do have to

          6  get back up to the district, but I wanted to stop

          7  by. And my leaving is not because I don't think this

          8  is important, it's just that sometimes I feel like

          9  maybe I need to be cloned so I can be in two places

         10  at once. So, please excuse me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I understand that

         12  at this point. As we're speaking here, I'm supposed

         13  to be across the street dealing with three items of

         14  land disposition in my district, which I cannot

         15  testify to it. Therefore, people will think that I

         16  don't care about the disposition of land in my

         17  district, but I need to be here.

         18                 With that, any question from any of

         19  the Council Members at this point?

         20                 Okay, any time that you would like to

         21  ask a question you let me know and I will stop.

         22                 Thank you for being here. And, yes,

         23  I'm aware of the dual responsibility that government

         24  has in regard of construction of the piers. But

         25  thank you for clarifying.
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          2                 I would like to know if you know what

          3  ferry-related allocations were made to DOT in the

          4  ten years prior to 2001. From federal government,

          5  from state government, and from City government, in

          6  regard to this issue.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Dollar

          8  allocation?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I would have

         11  to get that number for you. I don't know it off the

         12  top of my head.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But do you know,

         14  in general terms at least, that federal dollars and

         15  state dollars were allocated to the Department to

         16  build piers and to proceed with the fixing of the

         17  piers to make it wheelchair accessible?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: In the past,

         19  the partnership has been between the City of New

         20  York, the State of New York and the Port Authority

         21  and EDC.

         22                 As for the exact projects and dollar

         23  amount, we would be happy to provide it to the

         24  Committee but off-hand I don't have them.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay. It is my
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          2  understanding, and I bear this understanding on my

          3  research, that the federal government, the state and

          4  the City has allocated millions of dollars in regard

          5  to this, and there's cases in which some of the

          6  dollars were allocated specifically to make certain

          7  piers wheelchair accessible, then I would like to

          8  have that information as soon as possible.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: It would be

         10  our pleasure to get it for you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Do you know of any

         12  allocations after 2001, by the federal, by the state

         13  or by the City?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I guess

         15  in all of the new piers that are going forward, that

         16  would be incorporated in the design, and as well as

         17  the construction, and we can get that for you as

         18  well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

         20                 I mean, leaving aside the 74 million

         21  that appear in the book this year, I would like to

         22  know after 2001 what had been in there.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We'll be able

         24  to get that breakdown for you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, thank you.
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          2                 Please provide the Committee with a

          3  list of currently operating piers and terminals,

          4  including day location and points where boats

          5  docking at each of these piers travel to?

          6                 And I saw that in your testimony, you

          7  give us some of that, but did you include all of

          8  that in your testimony?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: All of them

         10  are included.

         11                 Now, you want all the piers, I

         12  gather, within the City of New York, whether they're

         13  owned and operated by the City or by Port Authority

         14  as well, or by some other entity, you would like a

         15  listing of them all.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Exactly.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Okay. We'll

         18  get you that list.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I would like to

         20  know what ferry operations are projected? Where are

         21  ferry services expanding? What are the expected

         22  dates for future operations to begin?

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Since Robert

         24  is the Deputy Commissioner in charge of passenger

         25  transport and has really been at the forefront of
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          2  working with the various other entities to expand

          3  ferry service, I'm going to have Robert answer that

          4  question.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Sure.

          6  Thank you, Commissioner. Thank you, Council Member.

          7                 In terms of the expansion of the

          8  private ferry program, we're working very closely

          9  with Deputy Mayor Doctoroff, who as you know is

         10  heading up the Ferry Task Force, and there are a

         11  number of locations and routes that are currently

         12  being discussed, but, frankly, there is no specifics

         13  that we have today that we can share with you that

         14  would be able to answer your question.

         15                 We're thinking of a lot of things,

         16  the southern corridor in Brooklyn, for example, but

         17  we don't have the specifics yet. We're not that far

         18  advanced in our planning of that.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: If I can just

         20  intercede?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: One area that

         23  sort of has come to light in terms of increased

         24  ferry service, Councilman Addabbo, as well as

         25  Congressman Weiner, and Borough President Marshall
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          2  had come to both the City and the agency about

          3  expanding ferry service from the Rockaways, and I

          4  know that all three of them are working rather

          5  vigorously to be able to expand service from the

          6  Rockaways, and at this time when Congress is

          7  thinking of reauthorizing the Transportation Bill,

          8  this is something that the Congressman has come to

          9  talk to us about. So, that's one area that I know

         10  that one of your colleagues, Councilman Addabbo, is

         11  really pursuing rather vigorously.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I'm very aware of

         13  that because I'm a big supporter of that, and I

         14  supported the Council member in the budget process

         15  to make sure that that item stay in place.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But thank you for

         18  indicating that. Two years ago I was involved in a

         19  presentation by the Olympics Committee, in which

         20  they informed me in which it was an attempt to

         21  present the Olympics in the context of utilizing

         22  mass transportation in the form of the ferry system.

         23                 Saying that, and knowing that the

         24  City have a very important investment on this issue

         25  because you represent economic development, at the
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          2  time I was told, and I was given information, that

          3  one of the things that the Olympics Committee was

          4  trying to do was to utilize the water system as the

          5  mass transportation system for the Olympians. How is

          6  the City portending to utilize that system, if that

          7  system is not fully completely wheelchair accessible

          8  and have the ParaOlympics in here?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I think

         10  one of the -- as you were presented, we were also

         11  presented with the notion that many of the athletes,

         12  as well as the visitors to the events, would use

         13  mass transportation, but really use waterborne

         14  transportation to get around from venue to venue.

         15                 I believe that the Olympic Committee

         16  here in the City has not really fully formalized

         17  their plans as to how they will accomplish that

         18  goal.

         19                 I think that right now the thinking

         20  is not so much that formulated, because New York has

         21  not been selected as the final winner of the 2012

         22  Olympics. I think that that will be one ingredient

         23  that they will have to look into and they will have

         24  to pursue in terms of getting all the folks around

         25  from venue to venue.
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          2                 But quite frankly, I don't think that

          3  they're that far along in their thinking yet.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The reason I ask

          5  you that question is because in my views, this bill

          6  will make that application for the Olympics

          7  Committee to look better in the sense of the

          8  international community, putting clearly out there

          9  that they intend, and intend of New York City, in

         10  providing mass transportation that is wheelchair

         11  accessible, it's a given even before we have the

         12  agreement or the recommendation that the Olympics

         13  take place in here.

         14                 I don't know if you agree with that

         15  proposition, but that's the way I look at this. What

         16  is your reaction to that?

         17                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I

         18  think, as I stated in my testimony, that we believe

         19  that many of the issues that are raised in your

         20  legislation either are currently being addressed, or

         21  will be addressed once certain facilities are

         22  completed, certain construction projects are done.

         23                 In addition, as I said in my

         24  testimony, we believe that many of these issues

         25  really fall under the purview of either the Coast
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          2  Guard, or the ADA Act, the federal ADA Act.

          3                 And, so, therefore we would be

          4  looking to two of those federal agencies to provide

          5  more defined guidelines for the City at this time.

          6                 You know, I just would also like to

          7  point out that when we talk about the ferry system

          8  in the City of New York, it's not just the City

          9  we're talking about. As you very well know, we

         10  service, many New Jersey towns get serviced as well,

         11  and, therefore, clearly this is an interstate issue

         12  when it comes to ferry service, and one that we

         13  really believe both the Coast Guard and the federal

         14  government should be looking into more clearly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I don't disagree

         16  with you on that. The problem is the federal

         17  government is missing their responsibility with the

         18  disabled community in big ways, to be precise for

         19  more than ten years. They are being, in my opinion,

         20  irresponsible in proceeding with this issue. There

         21  is no reason whatsoever this issue should not have

         22  been resolved already by the federal government.

         23                 Then I am not going to sit here and

         24  allow the federal government to be responsible, and

         25  I'm going to join them on it. What I'm going to do
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          2  is to take a position that is different than that

          3  and make sure that in New York City no more of this

          4  kind of facilities are built that are not wheelchair

          5  accessible, even in the absence of the policies and

          6  leadership of the federal government.

          7                 In this case perhaps I'm going to be

          8  the leader and they have to follow in regard to this

          9  issue.

         10                 Then do you have a procedure in which

         11  franchises for the transportation in the water are

         12  licensed, the Department?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well,

         14  Council Member, the way that we work the private

         15  ferry program, it's really free market. Aside from

         16  the specific programs the Commissioner talked about

         17  that are FEMA funded. The rest of it is just free

         18  market. If a ferry operator comes to us and holds

         19  all of their federal licensing requirements and they

         20  propose serving point A to point B, and if one of

         21  those points is within the City of New York, we then

         22  go through a process.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: What is that

         24  process?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well,
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          2  the process is a landing license that we have that

          3  we've worked very closely with the Law Department

          4  on. It establishes the terms and conditions of using

          5  a City-owned ferry landing and what their

          6  requirements are and what we expect of them, their

          7  responsibilities.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can we have a copy

          9  of those guidelines provided to the Committee?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Sure.

         11  Yes, we can give you a sample landing license that

         12  we have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: This is the same

         14  kind that the New York Waterways have to fill out,

         15  or the taxis, water taxis?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Sea-Streak.

         17  Any host of a number of companies.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It will be the

         19  same for all of it then?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Yes,

         21  there's one basic landing license, and we would just

         22  change the details in terms of what pier they're

         23  seeking access to. The number of operations, the

         24  forecasted number of passengers, and the number of

         25  trips per day that they're expecting.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay. What I'm

          3  trying to get is, do you have a uniform process that

          4  apply to each and every one of them? Or it's

          5  different for each and every one of them?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: No, no,

          7  no. It's uniform.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's the same.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Do they have to

         11  pay the City anything for that privilege of docking

         12  our --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Yes.

         14  Associated with a landing license is a landing fee.

         15  It's not a huge amount of money, but it does add up,

         16  but those funds are specifically used, they go back

         17  into the facilities to ensure that they're

         18  maintained in a state of good repair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And how this is

         20  collected, the money for that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: The

         22  funding is collected by the City of New York, and it

         23  is allocated in terms of the capital side of it

         24  through our partner EDC.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Suppose that
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          2  somebody doesn't pay it? What do you do in that

          3  case?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well, we

          5  would go through a normal process and try to seek

          6  payment.

          7                 Luckily that has not been an issue so

          8  far.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But currently it's

         10  not a procedure in place either, in case that

         11  situation occurs.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: We hold

         13  the right to revoke the landing license.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, that's what

         15  I wanted to know.

         16                 That is something that is under your

         17  purview? You will take the license away if that will

         18  happen?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: If I could

         20  just point out one thing, though.

         21                 Many of our, the companies that do do

         22  business with us, I have to say both right after

         23  9/11 and in anticipation of a transit strike, many

         24  of the entities that do do business with us, how

         25  should we say, stepped up to the plate rather
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          2  quickly. And, so, we've always had a rather good

          3  business relationship with them, and I can't in my

          4  two and a half years remember ever when one of those

          5  companies have not paid the landing fees that

          6  they've been responsible for.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Well, I imagine.

          8                 Going back to the question of what

          9  ferry operations are projected, you said that you

         10  don't have that information available yet. When are

         11  you going to have it available?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well,

         13  we'll start working with the Deputy Mayor. We hope

         14  to have something soon. I just can't give you a time

         15  frame, but as soon as --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Soon being a year?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: I would

         18  hope it's less than a year.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Six months?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: I would

         21  think that's a doable time. And we'll certainly

         22  share it with you as soon as it's done.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Are we projecting

         24  to expand these services as much as possible?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Within
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          2  reason, yes.

          3                 I mean, one of the big issues is the

          4  cost factor involved in ferry service. People can

          5  take express buses. They can take subway, they can

          6  carpool. The issue which we've had to grapple with

          7  is how much are people willing to pay for ferry

          8  service?

          9                 An example was that C Street ran a

         10  ferry from Brooklyn, from Sunset Park to Lower

         11  Manhattan. I think they charged, what was it, four

         12  or five dollars one way. It stayed in operation for

         13  a number of months and then it went out of business.

         14                 Right after 9/11 we came in and

         15  provided free ferry service.

         16                 Well, the ridership went from 200

         17  people to 2,000 people. Ferry service is very price

         18  sensitive and it's also a matter of time. How much

         19  are people willing to spend? How much time are they

         20  willing to spend on the water? And how long does it

         21  take them to get to the ferry?

         22                 We always like in our business to

         23  talk about how many seats does it take you to get to

         24  your destination? Is it a two-seat ride or a

         25  three-seat ride? And, so, all that goes into
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          2  consideration when you're looking at developing new

          3  ferry service.

          4                 One of the issues that we had to

          5  discuss with Councilman Addabbo, was he very much

          6  wanted ferry service in the Rockaways. Well,

          7  traditional ferries, ones that don't go at a fast

          8  rate, his constituents would be on the water

          9  anywhere from an hour and 15 minutes to an hour and

         10  a half. That's really not acceptable to a lot of

         11  people who are using it to commute to work.

         12                 They don't want to spend that much

         13  time on the water. The issue is can you provide fast

         14  ferry service? Well, as you provide fast ferry

         15  service, that cost goes up, and for a lot of people

         16  who live and work in the City of New York, that cost

         17  becomes unattainable, when they consider that they

         18  can, for the fare of a MetroCard take a bus or a

         19  subway.

         20                 So, these are sort of the issues that

         21  we're dealing with. And when Robert says that we're

         22  maybe six months away, we really have to figure out

         23  what's acceptable to riders and what's not

         24  acceptable. And that's what we're sort of grappling

         25  with.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: If I

          3  could just add one thing, just to provide some

          4  context to the discussion. We're talking about

          5  thousands of passengers here and there. The total

          6  number of passengers who use the private ferry

          7  services on an average day, I can give you

          8  statistics as recent as last week, it was about

          9  58,000. That's total.

         10                 Ninety-six percent of that number are

         11  passengers who originated in New Jersey, so just to

         12  provide you some context of what we're discussing

         13  here.

         14                 The total number of mass transit

         15  numbers in any given day is about 7.5 million.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council Member

         17  Dilan.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chairman.

         20                 Commissioner, we certainly appreciate

         21  the Department's concern and sharing the concerns

         22  with the Council to make ferries accessible as

         23  possible. In paragraph two you stated --

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Which

         25  paragraph?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: In the second

          3  paragraph you stated that you had some reservations

          4  in regard to this bill. You mentioned three items,

          5  one is the breadth of its scope, the amount of money

          6  it will cost to implement and the unrealistic

          7  execution of schedule. Could you maybe elaborate on

          8  those three items, and if you could maybe spend a

          9  little more time on the cost, if the Department has

         10  an estimate.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Sure. I'm

         12  going to deal with the time frame first, and then

         13  Robert will deal with the other two issues.

         14                 I believe the bill would cause to go

         15  in effect 180 days; am I correct? Did I read that

         16  correct? Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But not

         18  necessarily.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Margarita Lopez is

         21  very flexible.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes, I see

         23  you are.

         24                 Which is why I'm here.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: A hundred and

          3  eighty days in the realm of both ferry terminals and

          4  ferry boat reconstruction is a very short time

          5  frame, and we feel that that would be wholly

          6  unrealistic to be able to implement those changes.

          7                 Maybe Robert, you want to talk about

          8  the other two items?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Sure.

         10                 In terms of, I guess it's easiest to

         11  deal with the expense issue first. We have not been

         12  able to pinpoint a specific cost of the

         13  implementation of this bill, because it is so broad

         14  in its scope.

         15                 An example would be Slip E at Pier

         16  11, which I know you're certainly well aware of. And

         17  Slip E, as you know, was implemented specifically

         18  related to the emergency of 9/11. The Path Train to

         19  Lower Manhattan was destroyed, the most efficient

         20  way to move the 70,000 passengers that relied on

         21  Path previous to 9/11, was to move them by ferry and

         22  we captured a good percentage of that.

         23                 Pier 11 was not necessarily designed

         24  to accommodate as many passengers as it was now

         25  accommodating as a result of that. So, Slip E was
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          2  done as an emergency project. And our estimates,

          3  based on the draft federal guidelines that we use on

          4  accessibility issues and try to achieve them, our

          5  best estimates prior to going out to bid and perhaps

          6  EDC could expand on this, if you need additional

          7  information, but the City's cost estimates were

          8  somewhere around $150,000 to bring Slip E into a

          9  level of accessibility. When EDC issued its bids,

         10  the bid packages that came back from contractors

         11  ranged anywhere from 350,000 upwards of 700,000. And

         12  I think that's a very important example to use and

         13  how it's very difficult for the City to pinpoint

         14  what the total cost of the bill would be, but also

         15  emphasized how very expensive it would be.

         16                 If one slip of the system is anywhere

         17  between 300 and 700,000 dollars, to go through the

         18  entire system pursuant to the terms and conditions

         19  of the bill would be exceedingly expensive, and,

         20  frankly, we're very concerned given the City's

         21  budget where those funds would come from.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That is not the

         23  opinion of the Independent Budget Office.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: This bill would

         25  require that every slip in the City be retrofitted
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          2  to some degree?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: And how many

          5  slips do we have in operation?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: I have

          7  to get back to you with the specifics. I can't just

          8  give it to you off the top of my head, but there are

          9  locations. There's 90th Street, Eastern Fourth

         10  Street, there's Pier 11, there's the WhiteHall

         11  Terminals, there's currently Pier A, there's the

         12  World Financial Center, St. George in Staten Island.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: A point of

         14  clarification on that question, Council member.

         15                 All of them need to be retrofit

         16  because many of them are wheelchair accessible,

         17  correct?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Yes. But

         19  in terms of the definitions, in terms of the

         20  conditions of the bill.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The bill to

         22  establish uniformity, yes. But in terms of

         23  retrofitting, no. The answer is no, because many of

         24  them are wheelchair accessible, then all of them

         25  don't need to be retrofit, correct?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well,

          3  our concern is that our definitions of accessibility

          4  match up.

          5                 I would agree with you that many of

          6  our slips are currently wheelchair accessible. What

          7  our concern is, is that the definition of

          8  accessibility --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's very sad that

         10  the Administration is not going to be here, in

         11  particular the Commissioner, to see the power point

         12  presentation, because when we talk about our

         13  accessibility in the way that you define it, I want

         14  you to know that our ramps in which a wheelchair

         15  cannot go through, and that is called accessible,

         16  and it cannot go through because we have two pieces

         17  of metal in each side that is smaller than the

         18  wheelchair themselves.

         19                 Therefore, they cannot go through.

         20  And until you see all of the consistent problems

         21  that we found, you are going to have a different

         22  definition, obviously, about wheelchair

         23  accessibility, than the one that we have.

         24                 Council Member, you can continue, and

         25  I'm sorry that I interrupted you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: If you could

          3  just provide the Committee with what your Department

          4  feels are the number of slips that need to be

          5  retrofitted, it would be certainly helpful to me.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: We'd be

          7  happy to do that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: And then

          9  second, Commissioner Weinshall, you raised an

         10  objection about 180 days being too short. If the

         11  legislation were passed, how many days in your

         12  opinion do you think it would require for the

         13  Department of Transportation to get up to speed?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I think

         15  I would have to get back to you on that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Do you have any

         17  question at this moment?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes, thank you

         19  Chair Lopez.

         20                 Good afternoon.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You should

         22  introduce yourself also, because you were not here

         23  before.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I will do that

         25  then.
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          2                 My name is David Yassky.  The

          3  Commissioner is one of my 160,000 bosses, so I will

          4  introduce myself to everyone as well.

          5                 I just have a couple of questions.

          6  I'm unclear on the legal context here. Why does the

          7  Americans With Disabilities Act not -- does the

          8  Americans With Disabilities Act require a

          9  City-operated ferry service, for example, to be

         10  accessible?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well, I

         12  think you have to break down ferry service into its

         13  components.

         14                 ADA does require us and we implement

         15  ADA rules, regulations at ferry terminals. An

         16  example would be the new infrastructure that's being

         17  designed and currently going out to bid at 90th

         18  Street and 34th Street, those terminals comply with

         19  ADA. St. George Terminal on Staten Island complies

         20  with ADA in its design, and it's currently, as you

         21  know, being constructed.

         22                 New White Hall Terminal in Lower

         23  Manhattan is being constructed pursuant to ADA

         24  requirements that exist for buildings, and that's

         25  where the gray area comes in. And I think that's the
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          2  issue that we both agree on, that there needs to be

          3  some closure in this. And that for the terminals, we

          4  all agree, ADA applies. The transitional space is

          5  where the problem and the gray area exist.

          6                 There are no ADA requirements for the

          7  vessels themselves, and that is an issue that needs

          8  to be addressed. And that's why in the

          9  Commissioner's testimony she urges the federal

         10  government to move forward on this issue, as does

         11  the Council Member. So you have to break down ferry

         12  service into its actual components.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: The boats

         14  themselves are not subject to ADA?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: It is

         16  not subject to ADA, however, what we do in the

         17  Staten Island Ferry is build in as much

         18  accessibility as possible.

         19                 Our three new Staten Island Ferry

         20  boats are currently being built in Wisconsin at a

         21  cost of $120 million, have in their design ADA

         22  features, but there are no specific federal

         23  guidelines for maritime vessels related to

         24  accessibility.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I think the
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          2  reason for that, Councilman, is because once on the

          3  water the rules of the Coast Guard and their

          4  specifications take over; am I right, Robert?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Yes.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And they have

          7  concerns about the running and the seaworthiness of

          8  the vessel itself, and they are not subject to the

          9  ADA requirement, as we understand it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Just a point of

         11  clarification.

         12                 The ADA does apply. This is a civil

         13  right law. Where it doesn't exist is instead of

         14  regulations that establish standards in here, but

         15  the ferry system cannot deny access to anybody in

         16  their boats because they will be violating the civil

         17  rights of people based on the disability, and they

         18  have to have access. How they have access is what we

         19  don't have in place yet.

         20                 Therefore the ADA does apply and what

         21  we need to figure it out is how we make sure that

         22  they how to get it occur.

         23                 Now, understanding the question that

         24  you ask, if the ADA existed and the regulations

         25  existed to make sure that we don't provide new
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          2  construction under the provisions of the ADA

          3  approval ten years ago, why is it that we are in the

          4  process here to retrofit, something that never

          5  should have been retrofit according to the law; why?

          6                 My question is on the floor.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Oh, I thought

          8  you were making a statement.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No, I'm asking the

         10  question because right now Pier 11, I understand the

         11  consequence of 9/11, I understand that. But leaving

         12  that aside, I invite you to go and do a thorough

         13  investigation on your own of Pier 11 that doesn't

         14  have nothing to do with the particular slip that

         15  we're talking about. Nothing. It's only to do with

         16  different ramps that are not wheelchair accessible.

         17                 I'm going to tell you more. Even the

         18  building in which is housed the cafeteria, it's not

         19  wheelchair accessible because the doors to get in

         20  cannot be opened by a person in their wheelchair or

         21  a person with impediments in their hands. Not even

         22  that building is wheelchair accessible, or the

         23  impediments that are created by the construction in

         24  which we're not supposed to be building like that,

         25  it was built, and the law was in existence.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well, I

          3  know the members of your staff and our staff have

          4  gotten together on the pier and have conducted site

          5  visits. I believe that's correct. Somebody tell me

          6  if I'm mistaken there.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: We had not been

          8  with you in there, we have been there many times,

          9  but not with you.

         10                 I have written letters to the

         11  Commissioner that she answered back to me, and we

         12  have communication through that process, and that

         13  was being helpful, but being together in the piers,

         14  no.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well,

         16  actually we would welcome a site visit with you, if

         17  you could set that up and you could show us the

         18  issues that you're raising, we'd be very happy to

         19  walk the site with you and you can point them out

         20  and we can see if there's areas for improvement.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's no problem.

         22                 I also would like to let you know

         23  that I'm going to make accessible to you the copies

         24  of this powerpoint presentation, and the videotape,

         25  for the Commissioner to see it on her own leisure
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          2  time, if I am not killed by your husband, because I

          3  guess that your leisure time is very limited between

          4  both of you.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I just want

          6  to apologize to you. You know, I just got back from

          7  vacation today and my time is not my own and you had

          8  called my office and asked that I come testify, I

          9  have another meeting at 2:30. I would normally have

         10  stayed but I've got to be somewhere else. But I'll

         11  be happy to look at the presentation.

         12                 But as a matter of fact, I offer to

         13  you that when it gets a little bit warmer in a week

         14  or so, I will meet you on Pier 11 and together we

         15  can go look at the issues that you're pointing out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That will be very

         17  helpful, but just for you to see, these are some of

         18  the photos that I took in there. And this is

         19  something that doesn't supposed to exist as we

         20  speak, because the law was in place at the time. Not

         21  the proposal that I have, but the other law of the

         22  ADA.

         23                 Then moving forward --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Chair Lopez,

         25  can I just make one last question?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And on the

          4  ADA, it must be the case that ferry service is

          5  certainly offered by the City, and I think private

          6  as well, is covered by the ADA and in other words,

          7  cannot turn people away.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Right,

          9  and we have very specific procedures, for example,

         10  for the Staten Island Ferry, as we operate in a very

         11  high level of security we've had to change the

         12  operation, and, yes, we make provisions to ensure

         13  that all passengers can board and leave the vessel

         14  on the other side.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And then I

         16  guess following on that. It really seems to me it's

         17  just a matter of time. I understand you're point

         18  about 108 days, and I guess I was just joining with

         19  Council Member Dilan's questions to you, and look

         20  forward to the response. What would be an

         21  appropriate time frame, you know, to look for 100

         22  percent compliance because that's what we ought to

         23  be doing?

         24                 And I just want to also add to the

         25  context that you provided on cost and affordability
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          2  a ferry service, no question it's high price

          3  sensitive, as anything, as certainly as mass transit

          4  generally is, and if it's not competitive with the

          5  subway because we have subsidized subway and bus

          6  service that's quite good. If ferry service is not

          7  competitive with them, it's not going to attract

          8  passengers. That is why we discussed, ferry service

          9  is going to need to be subsidized to make it a

         10  meaningful part of the mass transit system.

         11                 I commend the Administration's

         12  efforts in the year and a little bit to date in

         13  providing subsidized ferry service, and I look

         14  forward to working with you to try and do that.

         15                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: If I

         17  could just add one thing in terms of trying to come

         18  up with a number of days, on certain issues it's not

         19  a matter of days.

         20                 For example, there are about 45

         21  vessels in the private ferry fleet that are operated

         22  by the four providers in this area, in New York

         23  Harbor.

         24                 Our review of the fleet has shown

         25  that about a third of those vessels will not be able
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          2  to be retrofitted, in terms of accessibility.

          3                 And we certainly acknowledge that not

          4  all of the 45 boats are accessible currently. I

          5  believe it's about half.

          6                 But we are concerned that it's not a

          7  number of days. If implemented, a third of the

          8  fleet, as it currently exists. I can't say that

          9  that's the fleet that would exist in the future, but

         10  a third of the fleet would not be able to operate,

         11  which would have a significant affect on the number

         12  of passengers carried.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Well, for your

         14  information, the Committee has been meeting in very

         15  productive ways with the owners of the ferry system.

         16  And they have been fabulous. And the owners of the

         17  system, I have to tell you, I feel very happy that I

         18  am working with them, and we met with them and in

         19  the process of meeting we discussed when they would

         20  be able to have the entire fleet in compliance, and

         21  for the information of the Commissioner and on the

         22  public in general, one of the things that the owners

         23  indicated to me was that they are more than happy to

         24  have this bill based because it would include

         25  accessibility creating safety as a very important
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          2  issue for them. And the second thing, rapid get in

          3  and get out from the ferry system that the bill will

          4  create that situation because the way that people

          5  get in and get out will make easier for them to have

          6  a more successful business. The quicker they move,

          7  the better it is for them.

          8                 Then when we have this meeting was

          9  interesting because they indicated to me that the

         10  fleet that they have, many of the boats that they're

         11  using were put in place due to the September 11 and

         12  the emergency they have and they're getting rid of

         13  them. They are not going to use them.

         14                 Then there's a matter of certain

         15  amount of planning which that is going to happen,

         16  and the ferry owners understand that this bill is a

         17  good bill. They don't feel that this bill is bad. To

         18  the contrary. Then that is not a problem. And the

         19  vessels that you're talking about that are not

         20  possible to retrofit are precisely the ones that

         21  they don't want because they use for fishing

         22  purposes and they were brought in as a measurement

         23  of emergency and nothing else.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: If I could

         25  just point out one other thing, which is that as
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          2  Robert pointed out, one week in January we had close

          3  to 59,000 people using ferry service, coming into

          4  and out of New York City.

          5                 It is our estimation that once the

          6  Path Service becomes available again, we will see

          7  those numbers come down dramatically. Many people,

          8  most people coming from New Jersey are clearly

          9  hampered now because there is no Path Service and

         10  therefore if they want to come to work in Lower

         11  Manhattan, their options are take an express bus, or

         12  to take some other form of transportation to a ferry

         13  in New Jersey and then come over that way.

         14                 Probably the ferry operators will

         15  then be able to not have to use those boats because.

         16                 The ridership clearly will not be

         17  there once the Path Service comes back.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: What I'm telling

         19  you is that they are getting ready not to use it

         20  now. Because they understand these boats are not the

         21  best kind of boats for these kind of services that

         22  they want to put in place.

         23                 Besides, Commissioner, I want to

         24  remind you that the subway system is not wheelchair

         25  accessible, and, therefore, the subway system is not
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          2  a welcoming system to the disabled community, that

          3  the Port Authority is planning to put wheelchair

          4  accessibility in the hope that they're going to be

          5  here, oh, wonderful, great, ah-ha, then what? After

          6  that it's nothing.

          7                 Then the only alternative that people

          8  with disabilities have, and as a matter of fact, the

          9  ferry service has become to be the light to

         10  illuminate the path in regard of accessibility for

         11  people with wheelchair impediments.

         12                 I want to show you something right

         13  now. If you saw the newspapers yesterday and today,

         14  this is what the people with disabilities have to

         15  depend on, and this doesn't work, then the ferry

         16  system is a possibility for people like no other one

         17  with disabilities.

         18                 I want to finish my questioning

         19  because I know that you had to leave and I don't

         20  want to retain you here.

         21                 Can you provide me, not in your

         22  testimony now, but can you provide me what is the

         23  DOT franchise process, the DOT process for licensing

         24  that I imagine is different, right? It's two

         25  different things.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Right.

          3  Franchising and licensing is two different issues.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Right.

          5  We don't issue franchises for the ferry services,

          6  just the landing license.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, then

          8  franchising is --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Separate

         10  issue.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then I also would

         12  like to receive, what is the DOT requirement for

         13  ferry companies to grand landing permits? What are

         14  the requirements that you have in place? And what do

         15  you ask from them?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Sure. We'll

         17  be happy to give that to you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you engage

         19  organizations like Disabled in Action or the

         20  Disability Network of New York City or the

         21  Independent Living Center on access concerning for

         22  the community in any of the process that you have?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: I don't

         24  believe so. But I can say that in our design and in

         25  working with EDC on Pier 79, we have worked with
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          2  EPVA.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And I believe

          4  also, we had a public hearing, didn't we?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: On the record,

          6  please, if you don't mind, and I'm sorry.

          7                 MR. JENASEUS: Hi. I'm Paul Jenaseus

          8  (phonetic) from EDC.

          9                 The projects I'm working on which

         10  were Pier 79 on the west side and the East River

         11  sites, we've met with the Disabilities Network,

         12  several people who are in this room, and we've met

         13  with our engineers and architects, we reviewed all

         14  of our plans, and at their request we also sent the

         15  designs to EPVA and they have reviewed all of those

         16  designs and submitted comments and they're being

         17  addressed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, thank you.

         19                 Can you provide me with how many

         20  ferry routes piers, ferries, does New York Waterway

         21  and New York taxi service currently operate?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can you provide me

         24  with that?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I also would

          3  like to have how many services bus and van routes

          4  the ferry companies operate. And I want to know if

          5  these vehicles are truly accessible.

          6                 I know for a fact that the ones on

          7  38th Street are not.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Right.

          9                 I would have to defer that question,

         10  for example, to New York Waterway in terms of their

         11  buses.

         12                 We have no specific involvement with

         13  the connection side of the program, but we can try

         14  to gather the information, but we would just reach

         15  out to the operator.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Because they

         17  wouldn't have to come to us for us to provide them

         18  with any type of license or some type of --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Right.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: So we would

         21  have no connection with that piece of the journey.

         22  It would just be the ferry piece that they would

         23  have a connection with.

         24                 But we can reach out. We know who the

         25  operators are, we'll reach out to them and try and
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          2  get that information for you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, that is

          4  understandable.

          5                 How many more ferry routes and bus

          6  routes are planned, and where will they be located?

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I think

          8  as Robert said, that's still being worked out with

          9  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff, and we will know in a period

         10  of time what those additional routes will look like.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can you provide me

         12  with information about what allocations were made to

         13  the companies before 9/11/2001 and after 9/11/2001

         14  for ferry terminals, based on some facilities?

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Are you

         16  talking about monetary allocations?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: From the

         19  City of New York to a private entity?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, prior to

         21  9/11/2001 and after 2001, 9/11, how much.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Well, I

         23  can tell you right off the top, prior to 9/11, the

         24  City had no subsidy agreements whatsoever. We do not

         25  subsidize operations.
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          2                 The City's involvement in the ferry

          3  program has specifically been on the infrastructure

          4  and on the capital side.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GROTELL: Now,

          7  post 9/11, given the disruption of Path and given

          8  the major disruption of transportation in Lower

          9  Manhattan, primarily, we have sought FEMA funding to

         10  actually subsidized operations. So, other --

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Some of it on

         12  a short-term basis, some of it on a long-term basis.

         13  Some of it was to spark interest, and that's why we

         14  had subsidies. Some of it more long-term, like the

         15  Brooklyn ferry that we're operating, has been in

         16  existence probably a week after 9/11 and is totally

         17  subsidized by FEMA.

         18                 But like the East 90th Street ferry,

         19  it was just for a short period of time, that it was

         20  provided free service by FEMA funding and then a

         21  different pay scheme went into effect.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can I have a

         23  dollar amount provided to me about what those

         24  subsidies were about, in terms of amount?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We'll show
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          2  you the source of money, that was really key because

          3  that money did not come out of either City expense

          4  dollars or City capital dollars. That was all in

          5  conjunction with the aftermath of 9/11.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That is my

          7  understanding, and if I get this piece of

          8  information, it will be the first time that I can

          9  say that the federal government provided something

         10  to us in the aftermath of 9/11, in an appropriate

         11  way. Because so far I have been a big critic of

         12  that.

         13                 My last question is in regard of, you

         14  indicated that the federal government has proposed

         15  legislation in place. I know that more than ten

         16  years has passed since this was put in place, the

         17  final report. To this day the federal government has

         18  not passed judgment over. To this day it's my

         19  understanding, through all of the connections that I

         20  have in Washington, that it's not planned to pass

         21  judgment over either.

         22                 Therefore, I don't have no reason to

         23  believe that the federal government is planning to

         24  take this issue in the near future, or a year from

         25  now.
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          2                 Therefore, the administration have in

          3  front a piece of legislation that is trying to make

          4  sure that this system don't continue to be developed

          5  in a way that is not wheelchair accessible.

          6                 What will be the way in which I can

          7  modify this bill to make you support this bill?

          8                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I think

          9  that's a rather large question, one that I don't

         10  have a complete answer for you today. I think that's

         11  something that in light of this dialogue that we

         12  need to mull over, and really think about how or if

         13  we would want this legislation to be modified.

         14                 I really don't feel equipped at this

         15  hearing to tell you in which ways it should be

         16  modified.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, I accept

         18  your answer. I just want to indicate to you and for

         19  the purpose of the record, I have reached out to the

         20  Administration in many ways.

         21                 I have asked the Administration to

         22  tell me, to point out what is it that I need to do.

         23                 In the last hearing that I had, it

         24  was very unfortunate that the Administration chose

         25  not to provide me with the answers to the questions
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          2  that I had.

          3                 I am very, very happy that you are

          4  here today and I appreciate your presence, and you

          5  don't know how much I appreciate that.

          6                 But I have been very disappointed by

          7  the lack of willingness of the Administration to

          8  cooperate with this process. I don't know what else

          9  I have to do to get the Administration to cooperate

         10  with me. I'm willing to go with you to the piers and

         11  to look into the issues that you're mentioning. I

         12  don't have no problems with that.

         13                 I cannot stop the process of this

         14  bill, particularly when I don't feel that I have

         15  been rewarded with the cooperation from the part of

         16  the Administration for me to be able to fix this

         17  bill.

         18                 With that I thank you for your

         19  presence in here, and the next thing that I'm going

         20  to do is to put this power point presentation in

         21  place. If you can leave somebody from your office,

         22  not from the Mayor's office, from your office, to

         23  look at this, I will appreciate it.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: You can be

         25  assured there will be a number of people here from
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          2  DOT who are going to stay for the remainder of the

          3  hearing.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 MS. BOLANOS: We're going to proceed

          7  with this presentation, and then we will be followed

          8  by testimony from the independent budget office.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: This presentation

         10  is not going to take more than five minutes. Very

         11  short and very quick.

         12                 I am just putting the power point

         13  presentation in place that we did in the last

         14  hearing. I only wanted to do that for the benefit of

         15  the Commissioner, and it's my understanding she's

         16  going to leave some people in here.

         17                 Then the person in charge of that is?

         18  Can you let me know who is the person from the DOT

         19  who is going to stay here? Okay, the two of you.

         20  Okay, thank you very much.

         21                 Can you please say your name in the

         22  record there for the benefit of me to have it in

         23  place?

         24                 MR. TORRES: Luis Torres.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you. And the
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          2  other gentleman, please?

          3                 MR. OLMSTED: And Alan Olmsted.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you. I

          5  appreciate it.

          6                 MS. BOLANOS: Can you please state

          7  what your respective positions are with the DOT?

          8                 Yes, could you please state for the

          9  record what your respective positions are for the

         10  DOT. At the microphones for the record. Thank you.

         11                 MR. OLMSTED: I'm with the Office of

         12  Private Ferry Operations and the Passenger Transport

         13  Division at DOT.

         14                 MS. BOLANOS: And your name is?

         15                 MR. OLMSTED: Alan Olmsted.

         16                 MS. BOLANOS: Thank you.

         17                 MR. TORRES: Once again, Luis Torres,

         18  Deputy Director of Intergovernmental Affairs.

         19                 MS. BOLANOS: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Then now we're going to proceed with

         23  the power point presentation, and immediately after

         24  that we're going to the Independent Budget Office.

         25                 People can choose to look either way.
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          2  It's your choice.

          3                 You will see the different terminals,

          4  and the different ways in which you can access or

          5  not access this ferry system.

          6                 If you look very closely, you will

          7  see that Alexander's is at the end of it. All the

          8  way over there.

          9                 Again, this is another one of the

         10  slips that we were talking about in Port Imperial.

         11  We do this job very well, by the way. We'll let you

         12  know by the presentation itself.

         13                 If you notice, it's impossible for a

         14  wheelchair to maneuver from the point that that ramp

         15  is to the boat itself, because it's a space of more

         16  than four inches in between.

         17                 Same situation here. A person who is

         18  walking can negotiate that distance, but a senior

         19  who had maybe some problems with mobility may have a

         20  problem in being able to get in and get out of

         21  there. And with a lot of probability will need

         22  assistance.

         23                 Same situation again. A wheelchair

         24  cannot negotiate that position from the pier to the

         25  boat because at least four inches of difference are
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          2  in there.

          3                 We're going to the same situation

          4  again. If you notice where Frieda is standing, and

          5  you notice the yellow line compared to the place

          6  where Frieda is, it's a difference of four inches or

          7  more in order to be able to get in there would be

          8  impossible without assistance whatsoever.

          9                 Same thing again, there you see it

         10  more clear. Okay, keep going.

         11                 In this case, this was one that

         12  called my attention, I know the good intentions of

         13  the owners of the ferry to put this in place, but it

         14  doesn't make sense because many of the scooters have

         15  three wheels, then it is impossible for a scooter to

         16  go through. For a wheelchair it would be possible,

         17  but not for a scooter. It will be literally

         18  impossible.

         19                 In here, you see another one of those

         20  ramps that I think possible for a scooter to

         21  negotiate, is impossible for a person in a

         22  wheelchair that doesn't have the power necessary to

         23  go and get in there. And scooters in particular who

         24  are becoming more and more and more popular for

         25  seniors, for example,  will have a hard, hard time
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          2  in being able to negotiate this.

          3                 In here we are showing you

          4  measurements of over five inches in the boats that

          5  impair you to go through, once you get from the pier

          6  to the boat, then you have to negotiate another

          7  barrier that will not allow you to bring the

          8  wheelchair in and out.

          9                 MS. BOLANOS: We understand from our

         10  meeting with the ferry operators that these are the

         11  side-loading vessels that are actually fishing boats

         12  and which are going to be taken out of service

         13  progressively, and that these boats were brought

         14  into service because of 9/11.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Same situation

         16  again. The landing in here, from one -- can you go

         17  slow? I'm getting dizzy here.

         18                 Same situation again. You're going to

         19  see this problem over and over again.

         20                 Now, I want to remind people that

         21  none of this supposed to be as we speak because the

         22  law as is right now does not allow that, period. It

         23  doesn't allow it. Nonetheless, this was put in place

         24  and no retrofit taken place in this situations for

         25  example.
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          2                 And in here, the deepness of the clip

          3  will impair the process to be smooth and easy to go

          4  through.

          5                 Although we have the ramp in here at

          6  the end, the boat is closing off to the piers but is

          7  dangerous to proceed, with an appropriate way of

          8  getting transition from the pier to the boat.

          9                 The deepness of this is unacceptable,

         10  and the specifications should have not allowed this

         11  to happen.

         12                 Then this is why the bill that we

         13  have put forward is needed.

         14                 This is a good example of how this

         15  can be done, and therefore, this proves that the

         16  technology exists, that we don't have no problem in

         17  making this happen, because it's here now in your

         18  face for you to use it. Same situation again. The

         19  technology exists is here. This is a good

         20  representation of how this should have been done.

         21  Therefore, nobody can claim that this was not done

         22  because the technology didn't exist. It was a

         23  decision made not to comply.

         24                 In regard to this, look at the

         25  wideness of it. The wideness is appropriate, it will
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          2  allow the wheelchair to go through, it's back and

          3  forth without no problem. As a matter in fact in

          4  this one a wheelchair and people walking can go at

          5  the same time, at the same pace, going through this

          6  process.

          7                 Then this is a good example, is what

          8  I'm trying to say.

          9                 Same thing. This is a very good

         10  example of how to put this transition from the pier

         11  to the boat in place, and, again, the technology

         12  exists.

         13                 It got frozen. Then perhaps we can

         14  stop here. I just want to acknowledge the

         15  contribution that was made to this Committee by the

         16  architect that we have on board in the Council

         17  before. Her name is Adriana Garcia, and thank you to

         18  her, we were able to put this together, and thank

         19  you to her knowledge and capacity.

         20                 I hope that this can illustrate

         21  clearly in a very small way what the problems are

         22  and why is it that I am so frustrated with this

         23  issue, because to begin with, none of this means

         24  that I had to show to the people today here should

         25  it exist. None of them. They should have not been
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          2  put in place to begin with. Therefore, in my

          3  opinion, they were put in place in violation of the

          4  law, bottom line.

          5                 Without no more, I'm going to call to

          6  the stand the Independent Budget Office to testify.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MS. BOLANOS: The next panel is George

          9  Sweeting and James Doyle from the Independent Budget

         10  Office, and we will follow this panel with a panel

         11  of community advocates and disability organizations

         12  that we have not heard from in the past.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 Please raise your right hand. Do you

         15  swear that the testimony you're about to provide

         16  before this Committee is the whole truth and that

         17  you will answer Council member questions truthfully?

         18                 MR. SWEETING: I do.

         19                 MR. DOYLE: I do.

         20                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay. Please state your

         21  name for the record before you begin your testimony.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 MR. SWEETING: I'm George Sweeting,

         24  Deputy Director of the New York City Independent

         25  Budget Office, and I'm joined by James Doyle, who is
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          2  a Policy Analyst at IBO who covers health and

          3  related areas.

          4                 I'd like to thank Chairwoman Lopez

          5  and other members of the Committee for the

          6  opportunity to appear before you today to discuss

          7  some of the fiscal issues surrounding Intro. 261,

          8  which would establish accessibility standards for

          9  passenger ferry services for disabled individuals in

         10  New York City.

         11                 Last month IBO sent the Committee

         12  Chair an analysis of some aspects of Intro. 261,

         13  which we had undertaken at her request.

         14                 Today I will briefly summarize our

         15  findings, and a copy of IBO's report is attached to

         16  the statement.

         17                 Our analysis focused on the per unit

         18  incremental costs associated with complying with

         19  some of the requirements under Intro. 261.

         20                 The estimates presented in our

         21  analysis were gathered from previous costing out

         22  efforts conducted by and for federal agencies.

         23                 Where appropriate prices were

         24  adjusted for inflation. Currently accessibility

         25  standards under the Americans With Disabilities Act,
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          2  largely end at the shore line.

          3                 Standards for docks and piers and

          4  some types of passenger vessels have not been

          5  established by the federal government.

          6                 Intro. 261 would address this by

          7  establishing standards for passenger ferry

          8  facilities and vessels in New York City.

          9                 Most of the shore side infrastructure

         10  for ferries is City-owned, and therefore the City

         11  would bear most of the cost of bringing these

         12  facilities into compliance of Intro. 261.

         13                 The work needed varies widely,

         14  depending on the tide, current, vessel use and space

         15  limitations.

         16                 Access solutions include extra long

         17  gangways, fixed intermediate lamps, extra floating

         18  docks and accessible gangways to the vessel decks.

         19                 Incremental unit cost estimated for

         20  the US Department of Transportation for solutions

         21  which closely track the requirements of Intro. 261

         22  range from a low of $20,000 to $328,000, largely

         23  depending on how much tides rise and fall.

         24                 Just to digress for a second, this is

         25  the cost of fixing one single gangway. It's not a
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          2  total solution at a site, it's for one single

          3  gangway.

          4                 If average conditions at the various

          5  bureaus in the City are taken to be a five foot

          6  height difference with accommodation for up to seven

          7  foot differences on rare occasions, that's

          8  differences in tide, the solution calls for use of a

          9  60-foot accessible gangway and a 12-foot accessible

         10  boarding gangway at a net cost per unit of $21,000,

         11  that the incremental cost of making it comply over

         12  and above just the cost of buying the basic

         13  facility.

         14                 Now let's move from the shore to the

         15  boats. Most passenger ferry vessels operating in New

         16  York City waters are privately owned, and the cost

         17  of complying with Intro. 261 would largely fall on

         18  the private operators. The one major exception is

         19  the City-owned Staten Island ferry service, it is

         20  our understanding that these facilities already meet

         21  the standards under Intro. 261, and therefore the

         22  City would face no additional cost in that area.

         23                 The capital cost estimates provided

         24  in the US Department of Transportation reports for

         25  short trips length commuter vessels, do not include
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          2  toilets, food service areas or elevators since this

          3  class of short-trip vessel often does not contain

          4  these features.

          5                 Intro. 261 exempts vessels less than

          6  48 feet from toilet access requirements.

          7                 For larger vessels, the operators, it

          8  is our understanding, would have the choice of

          9  whether or not to provide such facilities.

         10                 If they do provide them, then Intro.

         11  261 would impose accessibility standards.

         12                 The unit capital cost of alteration,

         13  again, this is the cost of bringing one single unit

         14  over and above the baseline cost into compliance is

         15  estimated at $15,000.

         16                 The unit capital cost for new

         17  construction is estimated at 13,400. The legislation

         18  also requires each vessel to carry at least one

         19  evacuation chair at approximate cost of $500 each

         20  and to have at least one crew member on board

         21  trained in using the chair to aid a disabled person

         22  in an emergency.

         23                 I'd be happy to answer any questions

         24  at this time that the Committee would have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I don't have any
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          2  questions. I have been looking at these documents

          3  for awhile, I just needed for the Independent Budget

          4  Office to come and testify on this issue to put it

          5  on the record, and make clear that this Committee

          6  has taken precautions of looking into the cost of

          7  what this bill would be.

          8                 And I want to tell you that I'm very

          9  pleased and I thank you for the work that you have

         10  done for this Committee. One more time I am

         11  convinced that the Office of the Independent Budget

         12  Office need to continue to exist, to provide Council

         13  Members like me an independent estimate of what the

         14  cost of things are, because sometimes whoever is in

         15  the other side of the Administration may say that

         16  the cost of something is prohibited, but then when

         17  we consult the Independent Budget Office, the costs

         18  get greatly accurate to a different number that was

         19  projected to begin with.

         20                 MR. SWEETING: I'd like to, I mean, I

         21  appreciate those comments, I'll just offer a slight

         22  word of caution on these estimates.

         23                 There are some areas where the

         24  Council asks us questions where we can do our own

         25  analysis, can use our own estimated procedures, it's
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          2  areas that we do a lot of work in.

          3                 Here what we basically did was

          4  consult with documents and materials and reports

          5  that have been presented through various regulatory

          6  processes with federal government. You know, so we

          7  think this is a reasonable approach at getting at

          8  these unit cost estimates, these aren't certainly

          9  the total cost, there's no way of going from here to

         10  what the total cost would be unless you knew how

         11  many slips had to be upgraded, which the Department

         12  earlier did not give you an answer. You know, we

         13  were not in a position to go out and survey all of

         14  the facilities, so we can't take these numbers,

         15  multiply them by the appropriate number, get you a

         16  total cost.

         17                 We're giving you the best estimates

         18  we could find of the per unit cost.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: This Committee is

         20  aware of that, and I know that you had discussed

         21  that with our office. I just need to move forward

         22  and I cannot allow the lack of information to stop

         23  me in the process of making justice happen and

         24  fairness to occur in the City, particularly when the

         25  laws have been passed about ADA accessibility.
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          2                 And I thank you for that, and

          3  although I understand that I don't have the total

          4  picture of the cost of this, unless I have

          5  cooperation, I am not going to acquire that. And at

          6  the end of the day, the bottom line in regard to

          7  this issue of cost come to the following thing.

          8  Piers are going to be built, ramps are going to be

          9  in place, economic development was going to happen

         10  with these routes, therefore, if they are going to

         11  happen no matter what, the cost of making it sure

         12  that it's wheelchair accessible is minimal compared

         13  to what would be if we need to retrofit. Retrofit

         14  will be much more expensive than making it right

         15  from the beginning.

         16                 Then for me, this analysis that you

         17  have made is good enough.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MR. SWEETING: Thank you.

         20                 MS. BOLANOS: Our next witness is Mr.

         21  Arthur Imperitore, New York Waterways, Dr. Patricia

         22  Livingston, New York State Rehabilitation

         23  Association, Rosemary McCaffrey from the Associated

         24  Blind, and Martha Dansinger from Community Board 3.

         25                 Okay, please your right hand.
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          2                 Do you swear that the testimony

          3  you're about to provide before this Committee is the

          4  whole truth and that you will answer Council Member

          5  questions truthfully?

          6                 MR. IMPERATORE: I do.

          7                 MS. McCAFFREY: I do.

          8                 DR. LIVINGSTON: I do.

          9                 MS. BOLANOS: Please state your name

         10  for the record, and we will start with Mr.

         11  Imperatore. Thank you.

         12                 MR. IMPERATORE: Arthur Imperatore,

         13  Jr., President of New York Waterway.

         14                 MS. BOLANOS: Please proceed.

         15                 MR. IMPERATORE: Thank you,

         16  Chairperson Lopez, I appreciate the opportunity to

         17  be here.

         18                 This is actually the third time our

         19  company has had a chance to meet with your

         20  Committee, but my first time.

         21                 We have testified before, but I felt

         22  it important enough given this issue and our

         23  commitment to making it right that I come myself and

         24  reiterate what we have said before in prior

         25  testimony to the Council.

                                                            81

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 Having said that, I would like to

          3  read back into the record a letter that we sent to

          4  the Council on January 21st, 2003 which was signed

          5  by Peter Johansen, our Senior Director of Regulatory

          6  Compliance. Peter has since been called to active

          7  duty in the Gulf, so he is no longer available to

          8  answer questions. He has been the point person on

          9  our efforts on this matter.

         10                 Dear Chairwoman Lopez and Chairman

         11  Liu, since New York Waterway began operating in

         12  1986. Private ferries become an integral part of the

         13  renaissance of the New York and New Jersey

         14  waterfronts. People who used to bring their cars

         15  into Manhattan now arrive on modern passenger

         16  ferries, leaving their cars and the resultant

         17  problems of pollution and congestion behind.

         18                 In 2002, New York Waterway

         19  transported more than 15 million passengers, the

         20  importance of the ferry to this region became

         21  apparent to everyone on September 11th, 2001, when

         22  the water became the only route of escape for

         23  hundreds of thousands of terrified people. New York

         24  Waterway alone evacuated more than 160,000 people

         25  that day.
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          2                 Along with the growth of New York

          3  Waterway from a small family-owned one-boat

          4  operation to a major transportation provider comes

          5  the responsibility to make our system as accessible

          6  or more so than other modes of public

          7  transportation.

          8                 Let me give you a quick outline of

          9  some of the steps that New York Waterway has

         10  undertaken to achieve that end.

         11                 New York Waterway has pioneered the

         12  use of bow loading ferries in passenger

         13  transportation.

         14                 With wide doors and height of the

         15  vessel set to match the height of the dock we have

         16  developed a system that has served our

         17  wheelchair-bound customers for many years.

         18                 Today, of the 30 vessels that New

         19  York Waterway owns, all but four are fully

         20  accessible to the handicapped.

         21                 And I will amend this letter at this

         22  point, it was written a month ago, to say that now

         23  only two of them are, and those two will be taken

         24  out of service within the next 12 months.

         25                 Last year, prior to the introduction
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          2  of this legislation, new York Waterway began a

          3  dialogue with the advocacy groups of the handicapped

          4  community to further improve the accessibility of

          5  our system.

          6                 Engineers from the Eastern Paralyzed

          7  Veterans Association conducted site surveys of all

          8  of our facilities and made recommendations to

          9  correct deficiencies. And with the help of this

         10  report we have made significant progress in making

         11  our system even more accessible.

         12                 As for our buses, the company has

         13  taken delivery of 15 new buses equipped with

         14  wheelchair lifts.

         15                 A follow-up order for ten additional

         16  buses has been placed and our bus fleet will be

         17  fully compliant with the ADA with the statutory

         18  deadline of October 2006.

         19                 A source of concern to the

         20  handicapped community has been the accessibility

         21  issue with some of the chartered side-loading

         22  vessels currently supplementing our fleet to provide

         23  additional service to Lower Manhattan in the

         24  aftermath of September 11th.

         25                 As a consequence of 9/11, we were
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          2  asked by New York City, FEMA and the Port Authority

          3  to put additional boats in service to provide

          4  commuters with expanded access to Manhattan.

          5                 Since few accessible bow-loading

          6  ferries were available for charter we had to employ

          7  a variety of boats, including fishing boats, whale

          8  watchers and excursion boats, not of which were

          9  constructed for use as a passenger ferry.

         10                 While we have modified these vessels

         11  somewhat to increase their accessability, there are

         12  some construction features that could only be

         13  changed through lengthy and costly renovations.

         14                 Additionally, making some of the

         15  changes required by the proposed New York City Law

         16  will require changes in the US Coast Guard

         17  construction standards.

         18                 With the resumption of Path Service

         19  into Lower Manhattan by December 2003, we expect the

         20  need for these charter vessels to diminish

         21  substantially.

         22                 We will also take delivery of an

         23  additional five bow-loading ferries in March of 2003

         24  that will allow us to replace more of these

         25  side-loading vessels with accessible bow-loading
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          2  ferries.

          3                 As to the proposed legislation, Bill

          4  261, we believe that it contains major flaws and

          5  question whether it is necessary.

          6                 The access board, the federal agency

          7  in charge of implementing ADA regulations, has been

          8  working to establish federal standards for ADA

          9  regulations on passenger vessels.

         10                 They have established the passenger

         11  vessel access advisory committee, which is made up

         12  of US Coast Guard, industry groups and advocacy

         13  groups to draft and implement accessibility

         14  regulations for vessels.

         15                 We support their efforts and have

         16  used their proposed regulations as the standard to

         17  which we have built our new vessels.

         18                 The drafters of bill 261 have used

         19  these proposed regulations as a basis for the City

         20  law but have changed them in some key ways, as

         21  follows:

         22                 1) The federal standards would apply

         23  to new construction and to vessels undergoing

         24  substantial modification. This is in line with ADA

         25  philosophy.
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          2                 The proposed City law will require

          3  all existing vessels to be rebuilt and would be a

          4  severe economic hardship to the boat owner.

          5                 The proposed City standards for

          6  vessel dimensions are more restrictive than those

          7  set forth in the proposed federal standards.

          8                 This would make new vessels built to

          9  the proposed federal standards, including many

         10  already operated by New York Waterway illegal to

         11  operate in New York City.

         12                 3) By following the City standards,

         13  the vessel owner would be put in a position whereby

         14  in order to comply with the City law, it would have

         15  to violate a federal regulation that could cause the

         16  US Coast Guard to revoke the certificate of

         17  inspection. Meaning that the vessel could not carry

         18  passengers.

         19                 4) The proposed federal standards

         20  make allowances for different sized vessels while

         21  the City law does not.

         22                 5) The legislation is too broad in

         23  scope. Some parts of the bill apply to all passenger

         24  vessels that serve New York City. This could include

         25  cruiseships, ferries, dinner and excursion boats,
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          2  chartered fishing boats, recreational craft and

          3  water taxis.

          4                 If cruise ships are included, for

          5  example, the City will be legislating the

          6  construction of vessels built to international

          7  standards.

          8                 6) By extending this legislation to

          9  include "any point to which vessels travel outside

         10  the waters of the City of New York," this

         11  legislation attempts to impose City law upon other

         12  states and foreign countries.

         13                 7) By imposing requirements for crew

         14  training and safety equipment, the law reaches into

         15  areas that the courts have ruled to be under the

         16  federal jurisdiction of the US Coast Guard.

         17                 8) Under this legislation, a ferry

         18  operator that owns buses would be given 180 days to

         19  equip all buses with wheelchair lifts.

         20                 This requirement is in clear conflict

         21  with the ADA timetable for bus accessibility.

         22                 In summary, it is our opinion, and

         23  when compared to other modes of public

         24  transportation, the ferry industry in New York City

         25  is the most accessible mode. As a company, New York
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          2  Waterway has made a commitment to improve the

          3  accessibility of our terminals and vessels and has

          4  expended considerable resources to that end.

          5                 We believe that this legislation is

          6  not necessary, and is in large measure preempted by

          7  federal law, and would impose standards on our

          8  industry that could seriously impair our ability to

          9  continue operations.

         10                 Yours sincerely..."

         11                 Now, having said that, I want to

         12  reiterate something that nobody disagrees upon,

         13  certainly our company, and that is we agree

         14  wholeheartedly with the objective of this bill.

         15                 We have been working toward that end

         16  in good faith for many years. Where we have been

         17  deficient, we have made every effort to correct

         18  those deficiencies, and certainly on the land side,

         19  especially with regards to terminals and ramps, I

         20  think we have made tremendous progress and should

         21  certainly by the middle of this year corrected all

         22  outstanding deficiencies. Both with respect to the

         23  ADA and with respect to that gray area of

         24  accessibility, the transition ramps between the

         25  fixed dock and the boat itself.
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          2                 In summary, our concern really goes

          3  to the vessels, and the attempt by the City of New

          4  York to regulate an area which historically has been

          5  reserved for federal jurisdiction.

          6                 We have made what we feel to be the

          7  best efforts to follow proposed federal regulations

          8  that have not yet been actually promulgated, a point

          9  that you made earlier, Chairwoman. And in so doing,

         10  we have been reliant upon proposed federal standards

         11  that have not yet actually entered into a formal

         12  rule-making process. And our boats are built to that

         13  standard, to a presumed federal standard that has

         14  not yet actually been promulgated.

         15                 So, for the City to impose a stricter

         16  regulatory regime on this area when we in fact have

         17  invested millions of dollars following federal

         18  accessibility rules strikes us as, frankly, onerous,

         19  and something that we can't sustain.

         20                 However, the good news is, if the

         21  goal is to ensure accessibility, those vessels in

         22  our fleet that we have designed and built are

         23  accessible. The issue with the transition between

         24  the dock and the bow of the boat I think has at this

         25  point been finally resolved.
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          2                 So, I would welcome any questions. I

          3  do have to leave in about 15 minutes. Perhaps I

          4  could answer questions now, if anyone has them. I'll

          5  then have to depart.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No, I don't have

          7  any questions for you in particularly. I have been

          8  meeting with the owners of the ferry system separate

          9  and apart from here and I will continue that process

         10  in order to try to figure out how to improve the

         11  bill.

         12                 But I want to make very clear to you,

         13  this bill is going to be passed, and that I don't

         14  have no doubt. And the only thing that I have to

         15  point out is that I am trying to make this bill pass

         16  in a way that is going to be helpful and not

         17  painful.

         18                 MR. IMPERATORE: I understand.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's what I am

         20  after.

         21                 I do believe that the industry is

         22  interested in making this whole industry wheelchair

         23  accessible.

         24                 I have no doubt about that. My

         25  preoccupation and my concern is that although the
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          2  commitment and the promises of doing this by all the

          3  parties involved, sometimes I feel like this is like

          4  a lover who promised the woman he loved that he's

          5  going to bring a castle but then the castle never

          6  show. Then it's come into a time that promises are

          7  not good anymore, and then the law need to be in

          8  place.

          9                 I'm not saying with this that the

         10  industry themselves and the boats are the major

         11  problem in here. As a matter of fact, I'm going to

         12  tell you something, I think the biggest problem is

         13  the surface, and that's from my side and the way I

         14  look at this.

         15                 Then this law is going to be passed

         16  and it's going to be passed in a way that it's not

         17  going to be harming to the industry anyway.

         18                 As a matter of fact, I want you to

         19  know, so that I have an interest that this industry

         20  continue to flourish, and the reason for that is

         21  because I believe that this industry is the only one

         22  that provides surface transportation right now to

         23  the disabled community that can be amplified and

         24  finally the disabled community will be able to

         25  travel interborough. Because right now they don't
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          2  have that possibility and they will not have that

          3  possibility in many, many, many years to come.

          4                 MR. IMPERATORE: Thank you. I want to

          5  pick up on your last point. I happen to agree with

          6  that. We have had experience with our Queens Midtown

          7  Ferry, which we ran for many years and stopped and

          8  then resumed in the wake of September 11th, which

          9  ran from Long Island City to East 34th Street, and a

         10  great number of our customers were from the disabled

         11  community. They had immediate access to New York

         12  University Hospital, which is right across First

         13  Avenue, and we have a list of those people, and I

         14  think they can certainly speak to our commitment as

         15  a company in how we tried to accommodate them, even

         16  at a time when the 34th Street dock, which is a City

         17  facility, was very, very difficult to negotiate.

         18                 I would also make two other points,

         19  and that is with respect to the transition ramps,

         20  which have been an ongoing source of concern. I

         21  suggest you contact the New York City Commission on

         22  Human Rights, Paul Polotsker (phonetic), because we

         23  have reached agreement with his office and with the

         24  EPVA on a proposed design for the ramping system to

         25  bridge those four-inch gaps that sometimes occur
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          2  between the bow loading vessels and the fixed docks.

          3                 Those ramps have been ordered,

          4  several of them have already been delivered, the

          5  bulk of them are due to be delivered by the end of

          6  this month, they should all be in service by early

          7  march.

          8                 So, I think that with respect to one

          9  problem that you pointed out in your powerpoint

         10  presentation, that will have been fully resolved.

         11                 And just, again, on the vessel side,

         12  my last comment. This issue goes beyond the City of

         13  New York and the private ferry industry. It goes to

         14  the entire passenger vessel industry in the United

         15  States, and even if the bill were to be drafted on

         16  the vessel side, which private ferry operators could

         17  live with, the City I think is running a risk that

         18  the passenger vessel industry, on a nationwide

         19  level, might raise objections because of the issue

         20  of issue of federal preemption, and that is

         21  something that I have had discussions with, with a

         22  Passenger Vessel Association, this could set

         23  precedence that the larger industry could find

         24  objectionable, even if issues that we have with the

         25  bill and other ferry operators here in the City have
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          2  with the bill, could be resolved satisfactually

          3  (sic).

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: We have a

          5  disagreement with you on that, and the disagreement

          6  that we have is very simple stated: We are not

          7  preempting anything, we are the original thing. The

          8  law has not been passed. The federal government has

          9  not taken this responsibility seriously, therefore,

         10  if no law exists, we're not preempting anybody. We

         11  are going to pass legislation that perhaps is going

         12  to be unique because, you know, in all honesty, the

         13  federal government, in our opinion, had lost the

         14  vote on this one, and it's not because it's not

         15  wheelchair accessible, it's because they didn't want

         16  to get in there. Then in terms of that we disagree

         17  with you very respectfully.

         18                 MR. IMPERATORE: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

         20                 MR. IMPERATORE: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Martha Danziger

         22  was called here and she was not inside. She should

         23  come in here.

         24                 Thank you, sir, for coming, and

         25  you're going to hear more from us because we have
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          2  not finished modifying the pieces that we're going

          3  to modify inside of the bill. Thank you.

          4                 The two people who are sitting, can

          5  you please proceed with your testimony? Either one

          6  of you is fine.

          7                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay, we will hear from

          8  Dr. Patricia Livingston next.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Martha, can you

         10  move into this chair over here? Thank you.

         11                 DR. LIVINGSTON: Thank you for the

         12  opportunity to express my views on Intro. 261.

         13                 I also would like to offer my

         14  congratulations to --

         15                 MS. BOLANOS: Please state you name.

         16  You need to state your name and organization for the

         17  record before you begin your testimony.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 DR. LIVINGSTON: Dr. Patricia

         20  Livingston, and today I'm representing the New York

         21  State Chapter of the National Rehabilitation

         22  Counseling Association, and the American

         23  Rehabilitation Counseling Association, and the Metro

         24  New York branch of the National Rehabilitation

         25  Association, National Rehabilitation Counseling
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          2  Association.

          3                 I offer my congratulations to you on

          4  sponsoring this bill, which I think is very much

          5  needed. I speak by the way from the background of 57

          6  years as a counselor and educator and advocate for

          7  the rights of individuals with disabilities.

          8                 That long experience has given me a

          9  very clear understanding of the crucial necessity of

         10  accessible public transportation for everyone,

         11  including individuals with disabilities.

         12                 Americans With Disabilities Act, the

         13  ADA, has recognized this need, as has your own bill,

         14  Intro. 261.

         15                 I would like to address my remarks to

         16  one particular aspect of Intro. 261, which deals

         17  with routes to entry to ferries. Something that

         18  nobody else has been concerned about.

         19                 I have enclosed with my testimony

         20  copies of letters I previously sent, a recent

         21  resolution from Community Board 8, and a map of

         22  Calshares Park (phonetic), which shows the

         23  extraordinary difficulties of getting to the ferry

         24  in the first place.

         25                 My contention is that no matter how
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          2  it affects the ferry boats and the ferry docks up if

          3  one can't get to that dock and that ferry through

          4  circuitous routes of a place like Calshares Park,

          5  spending all those millions of dollars is no good.

          6  Right. That's it. The bright red marks on that map

          7  show all of the steps up in Calshares Park.

          8                 Section 19-703 subpart A of your

          9  Intro. 261 finds an "accessible route" as

         10  incorporating, among other things, convenient and

         11  minimized travel distances from general public

         12  rights of way to connect facilities vessels in other

         13  areas.

         14                 And S 19-705 scope, says in a subpart

         15  A that "each means of embarking and disembarking

         16  passengers shall be accessible, providing an

         17  accessible route of entry and exit point for each

         18  passenger vessel."

         19                 I focus on this aspect of Intro. 261,

         20  because I believe that the ferry stop at 90th Street

         21  and the East River is in direct violation of both

         22  ADA and Intro. 261 in this issue.

         23                 I have attached correspondence on

         24  this point, which my husband, Dr. Arthur Livingston,

         25  and I, summarized our observations on the
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          2  inaccessibility of the 90th Street ferry.

          3                 In our memo of 3/26/02, we note that

          4  the "preferred route of entry" of the 90th Street

          5  ferry from 89th Street and East End Avenue presented

          6  by the development committee, is completely

          7  unacceptable.

          8                 It requires the user to negotiate

          9  four flights of steps and descend a hill to arrive

         10  at the ferry, clearly an impossible task for anyone

         11  with any severe mobility disability.

         12                 After further discussion in the East

         13  River Ferry workgroup, Community Board 8, we wrote

         14  again on 9/10/02 and expressed our views that the

         15  alternative routes of entry to the ferry, from 87th

         16  Street and 88th Streets are just as unacceptable.

         17                 As we noted, they "require the user

         18  to travel several blocks out of the way over rough

         19  paths and sometimes inclement weather and with

         20  limited lights at night." We asserted that this is

         21  not equal access.

         22                 The Chairperson of the Development

         23  Committee, Mr. Paul Janiseuski (phonetic), responded

         24  to us in a letter of 10/18/02, in which he again

         25  maintains that the ferry proposal meets ADA
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          2  requirements because of the availability of the 87th

          3  and 88th Street routes, which we have already

          4  described as unacceptable.

          5                 In addition, he quotes ADA

          6  regulations as requiring at least one accessible

          7  route which connects with "public transportation

          8  stops, accessible parking places, passenger loading

          9  zones is provided, and public streets or sidewalks."

         10                 Again, this ferry plan, this dock,

         11  fails the test. There is no public transportation,

         12  or any other travel amenity abutting the park as

         13  required by ADA. Anybody who exits the park at any

         14  of the streets in question, has to hail a cab or

         15  travel several blocks to the bus stop to leave the

         16  area.

         17                 Further to this point, by the way,

         18  Community Board 8 has just passed a resolution, a

         19  copy is attached, in which they object to the

         20  creation of any such amenities.

         21                 In summary, I certainly welcome

         22  Intro. 261, and I look forward to its becoming law.

         23                 This legislation will be, I believe,

         24  one more sign that New York City does not believe

         25  that individuals with disabilities are secondhand
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          2  citizens.

          3                 MS. BOLANOS: Now we will hear from

          4  Rosemary McCaffrey. Please state your name and

          5  organization for the record.

          6                 MS. McCAFFREY: My name is Rosemarie

          7  McCaffrey.

          8                 MS. BOLANOS: You need to have the

          9  microphone a little closer.

         10                 MS. McCAFFREY: Can you hear me now?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         12                 MS. McCAFFREY: Can I get a job at

         13  Verizon? Okay.

         14                 My name is Rosemarie McCaffrey. I am

         15  the program director of the Associated Blind. I

         16  apologize for not having written statements with

         17  you, Chairwoman Lopez, but I've been out four weeks,

         18  and if it wasn't for Anne Emerman's due diligence

         19  this morning, I probably would have missed this

         20  afternoon's meeting and I will submit my testimony

         21  in writing by fax, if you don't mind.

         22                 Before I state, I have been asked by

         23  Ann to represent the blind and visually impaired

         24  citizens of New York City, and I have accepted to do

         25  so.
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          2                 First let me acknowledge your

          3  statement earlier today, Chairwoman Lopez, in

          4  response to Commissioner Weinshall's testimony, in

          5  which you state that we will not -- and I'm

          6  paraphrasing here, we will not be a tag along to the

          7  federal government, that you will gladly take

          8  leadership role in pursuing accessibility for all

          9  people in New York City.

         10                 Having said that, a few months ago I

         11  attended a seminar put on by the Bar Association of

         12  the City of New York, addressing the Lower Manhattan

         13  Rebuilding of the transportation hub, and it was

         14  very clear from that meeting that accessibility and

         15  access and accessible meant many different things to

         16  every different person who spoke, none of that meant

         17  anything to me.

         18                 So, I got thinking, well, what can we

         19  say instead of accessibility where people understand

         20  what we are speaking about? And I thought perhaps we

         21  could use the word usability or safety, something

         22  that is usable by a person with a disability,

         23  certainly would be usable by a person without a

         24  disability.

         25                 Something that is built to be used
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          2  will be built better than the letter of the law.

          3                 Having said that, I would like to

          4  state what I believe would help Blind and visually

          5  impaired people in terminals, onto the terminals and

          6  into the vessels themselves.

          7                 As you stated before, surface

          8  transportation is a means of transportation for

          9  people in New York City, but getting interborough is

         10  almost impossible unless you take access a ride, and

         11  then it is truly impossible.

         12                 We will start at the beginning. Let's

         13  start at the terminals where all things start.

         14                 People who are blind and visually

         15  impaired have certain significant needs. Although

         16  are needs are the same, as most people with

         17  disabilities, a few modified adjustments, things

         18  made to law and specifications.

         19                 If there is a posted schedule in the

         20  terminal, there should be one accessible to people

         21  or usable by people who are blind or visually

         22  impaired, that would mean something in large print

         23  or perhaps accessible by or accessed by a simple

         24  telephone pad, as you would come home to call New

         25  York City Transit.
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          2                 If there is an electronic sign that

          3  signals changes in schedules, that should be done

          4  also by loud speaker clear and succinct, so that a

          5  person who is blind or visually impaired can hear

          6  and acknowledge those changes.

          7                 When a person who is blind or

          8  visually impaired uses a guide dog or a cane, or

          9  specifically a guide dog, they require no more room

         10  than a person using a wheelchair. So, the width of

         11  the gangways would be the same as it would be in

         12  specifications for the law.

         13                 The surface is very important, as I

         14  assume it would be for someone using a wheelchair,

         15  that it be a nonskid surface, that the docks,

         16  gangplanks and ramps all be non-skid surfaces. No

         17  one wants to wind up in the Hudson River or the East

         18  River.

         19                 But for a person who is visually

         20  impaired, who doesn't use a mobility device, they

         21  must be aware of where the dock and the gangplank

         22  meet, and a tactile strip of a very high color would

         23  be suitable for them, that is in ADA guidelines for

         24  anything that is tactile like that.

         25                 As I said, the gangplank should be as
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          2  wide as it would be for a wheelchair with non-skid

          3  surfaces and no gaps between, that it would one

          4  smooth surfaces, but no gaps between, because a cane

          5  can get caught between there or a guidedog's claw or

          6  claws can get caught in between any minute gaps that

          7  might happen.

          8                 Guide rails, safety guide rails

          9  should be installed on all gang planks. A tactile

         10  lip or stand on the bottom of the gangplank so that

         11  person using a cane when they slide the cane back

         12  and forth knows that where they have their safe

         13  area.

         14                 Let me back up a little bit. While in

         15  the terminal, there should definitely be all staff

         16  trained in disability awareness, in sensitivity

         17  training, so that interaction with all people with

         18  disabilities is a comfortable and friendly one.

         19                 Now, when we get on the boat, the

         20  same should be true. All personnel should be trained

         21  in disability awareness and sensitivity training.

         22  There is nothing worse than being pulled, prodded or

         23  pushed when you are blind or visually impaired or

         24  otherwise disabled. It's disrespectful and

         25  humiliating.
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          2                 Modifications are small but

          3  important. They should have been done 13 years ago.

          4  There is no need to be having these hearings on

          5  Intro. 261. It should pass. It is important and I

          6  commend you for doing so.

          7                 MS. DANZIGER: Hello, Council Member

          8  Lopez. My name is Council Member Danziger. I'm here

          9  to read a statement by Harvey Epstein, the Chair of

         10  the Board, in support of Intro. 261.

         11                 MS. BOLANOS: Which board are you?

         12                 MS. DANZIGER: Board 3, Manhattan.

         13                 One of it that's eastern bordered is

         14  the Eastern River, so the water ferries, access to

         15  the ferries is very important to us. In fact, our

         16  waterfront begs for a ferry stop. It's been a

         17  priority to have a ferry at Pier 42, an unused ferry

         18  south of East River Park, and it is also an area

         19  that is chronically underserved by public

         20  transportation so the ferry service would be very

         21  important to us, and, of course, we want it to be

         22  accessible and usable as the previous speaker

         23  mentioned.

         24                 This is the statement from the Chair

         25  of the Board. The testimony is being submitted by
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          2  Manhattan Community Board 3, which has a

          3  longstanding history of supporting disability

          4  access. I want to thank our Councilperson, Margarita

          5  Lopez, for asking us to appear today. As you may be

          6  aware, Manhattan's Community Board 3 encompasses a

          7  diverse part of Lower Manhattan, including the East

          8  Village, Lower East Side and Chinatown. I would add

          9  Lower East Side. The residents have a wide range of

         10  socioeconomic and racial backgrounds. This diversity

         11  has positioned us well in relation to wheelchair

         12  accessibility. When any matter comes before our

         13  board, one of the first issues we deal with is

         14  wheelchair accessibility.

         15                 This includes street fairs, farmers

         16  markets, housing development or park renovations. I

         17  would also say that we ask people seeking SLA

         18  licenses also, who can go in there and enjoy

         19  themselves.

         20                 In reference to the legislation,

         21  Intro. 261 before us today, the Human Service

         22  Committee of CB 3 has approved the legislation that

         23  requires wheelchair accessibility for all ferry

         24  boats. It is likely that on February 25th, 2003

         25  Board meeting, that's tomorrow night, our Board will
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          2  unanimously support this position, I can say with

          3  confidence that this type of legislation is

          4  extremely important to our community and to our City

          5  and I thank the Council for taking up the bill.

          6                 That's the end of the statement. I

          7  just wanted to add that within the last two years I

          8  took the ferry to 34th Street on the east side to a

          9  Yankee game, which is a great way, it reduces

         10  traffic, it reduces pollution, but there was more

         11  than a two-foot step. I, as a short, fat person

         12  couldn't do it, and I know that there were elderly

         13  people that couldn't get on and they needed to

         14  people to move them, so I don't know that that's

         15  been corrected, and I'm sorry that I didn't write

         16  about it then, because it would have been

         17  appropriate, but you had to be helped up onto the

         18  step and stepping down was even harder and then you

         19  went onto a wiggly bridge, was something out of the

         20  Bridge over River Kaui (phonetic), and you know,

         21  it's worth it because the Yankees won, however, it

         22  was raining and it was inappropriate. So, the change

         23  is long overdue.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you for your
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          2  testimony, and thank each and every one of the prior

          3  speakers. And I want to clarify a couple of things.

          4                 In regard to Community Board 8, the

          5  Committee is very aware of the issues that you

          6  brought in front of us. We have been looking into it

          7  and dealing with it for awhile, particularly we want

          8  to know from the Parks Department what are the plans

          9  that they have to fix the problems that are in

         10  there, because the issues that you mention are under

         11  the jurisdiction of the Park Department because it's

         12  part property, and in no way, as we speak right now

         13  the Park Department should have a park that is not

         14  wheelchair accessible to begin with. To begin with

         15  that should not exist but that is the reality.

         16                 In regard of the testimony of

         17  Rosemary, I want to indicate that our concern is

         18  brought and include all disabilities on the issue of

         19  the capacity for people with disabilities to acquire

         20  access to the bases. And I want to thank you for the

         21  suggestions that you brought to the Committee in

         22  regard of the issues that you mentioned.

         23                 That is the reason that is so

         24  healthy, to always have a committee of advisors of

         25  people of the disability on all of these issues, and
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          2  I don't understand why the agencies don't have them

          3  customarily as a matter of policy, to have them in

          4  there in order to help them with this problem.

          5                 Therefore, thanks, to the three of

          6  you for the testimony provided today.

          7                 And next?

          8                 MS. BOLANOS: Our next witnesses are

          9  Adele Bender; John Gresham, New York Lawyers for the

         10  Public Interest; and Fusun Ateser.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I don't know if

         12  this is going to be an imposition on you.

         13                 I want to apologize to the disabled

         14  community that needs to use wheelchairs in here. The

         15  Council, for reasons that I don't understand, one

         16  more time give me a room that is inappropriate for

         17  this hearing to take place, and I guess that's the

         18  reason I had to continue raising my voice on issues

         19  of disability in the way that I do it, even

         20  providing leadership to the Council themselves, for

         21  the lack of our witnesses that they have on issues

         22  with people with disabilities.

         23                 Then for my part, I apologize to you

         24  for what happened here in regard of the Committee

         25  Room, but I need to clarify for you my committee
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          2  reserved the big room on time and it was done

          3  appropriately. But the leadership of the Council

          4  decided to change my meeting to hear without my

          5  concern or my consultation.

          6                 MS. BENDER: Good afternoon. My name

          7  is --

          8                 MS. BOLANOS: I'm sorry, I need to

          9  swear you in.

         10                 MS. BENDER: Oh.

         11                 MS. BOLANOS: I'm waiting for the

         12  other witnesses to come up.

         13                 MS. BENDER: I'm sorry.

         14                 MS. BOLANOS: Please raise your right

         15  hand.

         16                 Do you swear that the testimony

         17  you're about to provide before this Committee is the

         18  whole truth and that you will answer Council Member

         19  questions truthfully?

         20                 MS. BENDER: I do.

         21                 MS. ATESER: I do.

         22                 MR. GRESHAM: I do.

         23                 MS. BOLANOS: Please state your name

         24  for the record before you begin your testimony, and

         25  your organization, and we will start with Ms.
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          2  Bender.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 MS. BENDER: Thank you.

          5                 Good afternoon. My name is Adele

          6  Bender. I'm a Queens Borough Coordinator for JPAC,

          7  which stands for Joint Public Affairs Committee for

          8  Older Adults.

          9                 Well, it seems that everything old is

         10  new again. We have come full circle in recognizing

         11  that ferry service that once was an important part

         12  of New York Transportation is again necessary and

         13  viable in New York.

         14                 The ferry is the most pleasant and

         15  efficient way to travel and may even help to

         16  alleviate some stress, as well as some of the

         17  traffic congestion.

         18                 It can move us from borough to

         19  borough in a very timely manner.

         20                 We're experiencing an elder boom

         21  population, many of whom are not as agile as we grow

         22  older and frailer and sometimes become disabled.

         23                 There is also a younger population

         24  that is disabled, or out there and more visible,

         25  much of this is due to the Americans With
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          2  Disabilities Act that allow and encourage more

          3  disabled people to get out there whether it was

          4  entering the workforce and/or getting involved in

          5  other activities.

          6                 There are also these wonderful

          7  motorized wheelchairs and such devices providing

          8  disabled people with more mobility.

          9                 Elderly and disabled people work, go

         10  to school, are politically and community active,

         11  enjoy cultural activities, go shopping, all of which

         12  contribute to the economy and vitality of New York.

         13                 Ferry service helps to ensure that

         14  elderly and the disabled community can further enjoy

         15  and participate in all of the mainstream activities.

         16                 However, unless such legislation

         17  which has been introduced called Accessible

         18  Passenger Ferry Transportation Act Intro. 261 is

         19  passed, the elderly and disabled are left out and

         20  deprived of the advantages of ferry service.

         21                 For many, the subways are becoming

         22  difficult to use, mainly because of the stairs.

         23  Boarding a bus is becoming difficult, even when the

         24  bus kneels, it can still be difficult and more so

         25  when people carry packages. Those stairs are rather
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          2  steep. I'm beginning to find it.

          3                 I see people with canes who have

          4  difficulty walking because of pains in the joints

          5  and boarding the bus is difficult for them.

          6                 The ferry would be a great help for

          7  many, when going from one borough to another it

          8  means changing buses a few times, while the ferry

          9  gets us from one borough to another, without having

         10  to make bus changes.

         11                 Therefore it is important that

         12  standards as put forth in Intro. 261 that require

         13  accessible piers, docks, ferries and waterborne

         14  transportation services to the elderly and those

         15  with any impairments be implemented.

         16                 Walking surface should have a

         17  non-slip surface and always be properly maintained

         18  and kept dry and clear of snow. This important and

         19  humane legislation addresses doors, doorways, door

         20  hardware, ramps and rails, to accommodate

         21  wheelchairs, the ramps should be edge-protected to

         22  prevent a cane from slipping off the edge, and for

         23  the safety of wheelchairs, visually impaired and

         24  blind people using seeing-eye dogs, transition

         25  plates and/or ramps to provide easy access to
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          2  inner-cabins with steps going into the inner covered

          3  cabins, and an evacuation chair suitable for an

          4  emergency situation and to have a trained crew

          5  member available at all times to assist those

          6  requiring help in the event of an emergency

          7  evacuation. These standards would certainly be

          8  advantageous to everyone with or without

          9  disabilities.

         10                 This legislation considers not just

         11  today, this week or next year. It is forward looking

         12  because we must think into the future. Proper design

         13  and proper maintenance will make for a great system

         14  to be enjoyed by both young and old. This is all par

         15  for the course of a civilized and a caring society

         16  and a caring New York and above all, shows respect.

         17                 None of you sitting here, and this

         18  goes for anybody that may oppose it, and I don't

         19  mean this for the converted, none of you sitting

         20  here know what your future holds and even how you

         21  will feel when you get up one morning. This affects

         22  you, your loved ones, family, friends, New Yorkers

         23  and tourists.

         24                 Please vote for Intro. 261,

         25  accessible Passenger Ferry Service Transportation
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          2  Act. It is the right thing to do and I promise you

          3  will never regret it. Thank you.

          4                 MR. GRESHAM: John Gresham, New York

          5  Lawyers for the Public Interest.

          6                 I just wanted to briefly say I

          7  completely agree that you need an answer from the

          8  Parks Department on the East 90th Street stop. I've

          9  gone and checked that out and done some

         10  measurements. I think most of the stairways can be

         11  ramped. If not, certainly stairways in one location

         12  can be, and that would greatly shorten the route and

         13  make it much safer.

         14                 As it presently stands, a person who

         15  can't negotiate the steps would have to go through

         16  the park and the distance is 180 yards longer than

         17  the direct route, and if you visualize that, that's

         18  one and four-fifths football field. It's really not

         19  an acceptable approach. But I think it's fairly

         20  easily solved by some ramping.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Don't leave,

         23  please. Stay there.

         24                 MS. ATESER: I would like to tell you

         25  my story, because I do use the ferry.
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          2                 MS. BOLANOS: Please state your name

          3  and organization for the record.

          4                 MS. ATESER: I'm sorry.

          5                 MS. BOLANOS: Not a problem.

          6                 MS. ATESER: I'm a member of Disabled

          7  In Action. My name is Fusun Ateser.

          8                 MS. BOLANOS: Thank you.

          9                 MS. ATESER: On the Internet and on

         10  print map of New York City and Services, the ferry

         11  always has the insignia of accessible, the blue with

         12  the wheelchair, which I was asked by other people

         13  when we were exchanging war stories outside of New

         14  York City, why we were trying to make the ferries

         15  accessible, weren't our ferries already accessible.

         16  I don't know how legally that is but people outside

         17  do think it is accessible.

         18                 I often go to Jersey City, I cross

         19  the river on a passenger ferry in five minutes. I

         20  started using waterborne transportation even when I

         21  had the choice of riding the Path train, one day I

         22  got stuck underground due to a non-working elevator.

         23  So, the healthy choice would be the ferry service.

         24                 All New York Waterways bus service is

         25  not accessible, and their van for the disabled
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          2  passengers need to be reserved at least 24 hours in

          3  advance.

          4                 That's not a problem, I can go down

          5  to either World Financial Center pier or pier A on a

          6  City bus, and in the summertime, I live in the

          7  Village, when I take the bicycle path along the

          8  Hudson River, it's quick, it's a smooth ride. But

          9  once you get there it's full of anxiety because the

         10  New York Waterway captain, this is not to say some

         11  are good, some are bad, sometimes can, sometimes

         12  cannot level the vessel with the pier. They say that

         13  depends on the tide, as we have seen in your

         14  photographs, it could mean at least five inches,

         15  sometimes more, of a level difference. There is no

         16  ramp. I turn backwards, the two deck heads lift my

         17  chair by the handles in the back, and they put me

         18  onboard, the unsupported heavy front wheel follows,

         19  along with a bang.

         20                 The motor of my chair is right above

         21  that front wheel, which lands with a bang, neither

         22  the manufacturer, who has to fix the motor a number

         23  of times, nor I'm obviously happy about this big ban

         24  that's required of me if I want to take the ferry.

         25  What it does to my body, that bang, is another
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          2  story, but this is the routine.

          3                 Then sometimes out of this routine I

          4  just want to tell you about the 4th of July

          5  experience. Last 4th of July the New York Waterway

          6  vessel that arrives at Pier A was different than the

          7  usual, I wouldn't know how to describe in their

          8  terms, but it was at least 20 inches higher than the

          9  pier. So, there was no way to level it.

         10                 And the Captain had no intentions of

         11  helping. There was only one deck-hand. Some of my

         12  fellow passengers, I was I guess lucky because it

         13  was 4th of July, declared that they wouldn't get on

         14  board unless I was accommodated.

         15                 An off-duty Coast Guard, another

         16  passenger, helped the deck-hand drag a very heavy

         17  and steep ramp-like thing, which you have in your

         18  photograph, it's something like a ramp, I don't know

         19  what it is, because once it is placed there,

         20  although it's steep and someone can push you there

         21  is no way you can get on it because it's a few

         22  inches high off of the pier to begin with.

         23                 So, they pushed me on board, and then

         24  they got on. Except that the Captain was very

         25  unhappy with all this, and I felt terrible. As I was
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          2  apologetically thanking my fellow passengers, the

          3  Captain was yelling, "if you don't like it, you can

          4  get off."

          5                 I try to remember that 4th of July as

          6  the day of fellowship, rather than the humiliation I

          7  endured. Except that I fail to comprehend why I

          8  should be subjected to the whims of either captain

          9  or tide, when it is easy to build an accessible pier

         10  from the start.

         11                 I do comprehend, though, especially

         12  after today, that the answer is in the Intro. 261. I

         13  thank you for introducing it. I thank you for giving

         14  me the opportunity to voice my support.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Your testimony justifies everything

         18  that I'm doing every minute of my life.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 Mr. Gresham, I asked you to stay

         21  right there because I want to address the question

         22  of a series of statements that have been made in

         23  this Committee over and over again about this

         24  legislation, and I want to take the opportunity that

         25  you came forward now in regard to the question of
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          2  the park.

          3                 It has been said in this Committee by

          4  many people that this legislation is not needed

          5  because the Human Right Commission is negotiating

          6  with the owners to put a ramp here and there,

          7  because the Department of Transportation is going to

          8  make sure that the future piers are going to be in

          9  compliance. Because, because, because, because,

         10  because, because, because - many "because" has been

         11  put on the record. Meanwhile, it is my understanding

         12  that you are usually the lawyer who is involved in

         13  negotiations and bringing lawsuits for making the

         14  ADA laws in compliance.

         15                 Then my question to you is, when this

         16  Committee here continuously, this kind of testimony,

         17  saying to this Committee you don't need to put this

         18  legislation forward, because you are preempting

         19  federal government, because we are negotiating with

         20  the Human Right Commission, because we are in

         21  consultation with the dependents organization (sic).

         22  Do you agree with the statements they made, or you

         23  think that this bill is necessary and it should be

         24  passed?

         25                 MR. GRESHAM: Oh, I completely think
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          2  it's necessary and it should be passed. The ADA

          3  clearly does cover this area. The way the ADA works

          4  is it's written in fairly broad terms and the

          5  federal agencies by regulations or standards are

          6  supposed to fill in the specifics, and when you get

          7  to something like this, you need to have numbers of

          8  inches of widths of gangplanks and how steep they

          9  are and edge protection and all of the things we've

         10  been talking about, all that needs to be specified,

         11  and it isn't. As you say, it's been ten years and

         12  there's still no time apparent when the Federal

         13  Guidelines Board will put its guidelines in final

         14  form, who know how many of us will still be using

         15  ferries when we get around to it.

         16                 That's one thing, you need specifics

         17  and that's what your bill is filling, at least until

         18  the ADA comes along, if it ever does.

         19                 As to whether or not the efforts that

         20  have been in place have been sufficient, I think the

         21  answer is in your photographs, in the observations

         22  that people have made.

         23                 In some ways, between the lines and

         24  what hasn't been said here today, we've heard that

         25  Waterways boats are accessible with a few
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          2  exceptions. That may be true, but as of very

          3  recently, I think it was a day earlier this month,

          4  you know on visiting Pier 11, a boat came in, maybe

          5  it had a foot difference between the height of the

          6  boat and the height of the dock, and put a step in

          7  front of that difference in order for people to

          8  negotiate. Most people who can climb steps would

          9  have found it too steep.

         10                 You know, what good is having the

         11  accessible boat if you can't get on it. So, you

         12  know, and who is responsible here? The City is

         13  supposed to take care of the docks, and it says the

         14  owners are supposed to deal with that transition.

         15                 The owners, at least Mr. Imperatore

         16  talks about his commitment to the issue, but up

         17  until a couple of weeks ago, at least, they were

         18  still asking people to train and negotiate those

         19  steps.

         20                 I submit that something is not

         21  working here. I also did not hear, when I was

         22  listening to the representative from the

         23  Transportation Department anything about their

         24  requiring the owners to get with it and fulfill

         25  their requirements, if they want a licensing permit
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          2  to use City piers.

          3                 I did not hear that. I heard that

          4  they were going to fix their piers, their new piers

          5  would be dandy, this and that, but I did not hear

          6  that they would refuse to let somebody have a

          7  license to use City property, and I can't understand

          8  that. Why is the City of New York allowing private

          9  operators to make money by using its property when

         10  they don't provide accessible service. We don't have

         11  to do that, and why are we?

         12                 So, perhaps that's a longer answer

         13  than you wanted. To speak to preemption, I agree

         14  with you. I don't think it's preempted. There are no

         15  federal standards in place. When they finally come

         16  along, if there's any difference, I'm sure that they

         17  will be grandfathered, because your bill is

         18  basically based on the federal draft, and in a

         19  couple of places it's a little bit more demanding,

         20  but you know, if in some way the feds make it

         21  tighter when they finally, some time or another make

         22  their guidelines, I'm sure they'll have to

         23  grandfather those that were built, piers that were

         24  built to their draft standards. You can't penalize

         25  people for following their drafts, and that's
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          2  essentially what you would be requiring to be done.

          3                 As far as the Coast Guard regulations

          4  and so forth. The only one that I've heard a

          5  specific comment on was, it wasn't mentioned today,

          6  but I've heard it mentioned before, one of your

          7  pictures showed a sil, what you might call a sil in

          8  the door between a boat cabin and the outer deck,

          9  that was I believe five inches by the measurement in

         10  the picture, in some cases the Coast Guard does

         11  require that kind of thing for watertight integrity.

         12  They have some sils like that on the older Staten

         13  Island boats, which they simply ramped. A guy with a

         14  welding torch and a little ingenuity in a half hour

         15  could figure out how to fix that, and you don't even

         16  need to necessarily ramp it permanently, you could

         17  have a little short, you know, five-inch ramp that

         18  you take away when it's not required.

         19                 There's no conflict with the Coast

         20  Guard regulation that I could see, and insofar as

         21  the Coast Guard regulations are regulating

         22  sea-worthiness, we're talking about regulating

         23  access, basically. It's sort of a different subject.

         24                 So, for many reasons, yes, I think

         25  this is necessary, and timely, and the City would
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          2  have been wise to do this all a long time ago,

          3  actually, so it didn't have to retrofit some things

          4  it will now have to retrofit.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: My last question,

          6  I want you to comment onto the question of the

          7  negotiations that have been taking place between the

          8  EPVA and the owners of the ferries who made the

          9  buses that transport people from one point to

         10  another wheelchair accessible.

         11                 It is my understanding, and correct

         12  me if I'm wrong, that those buses should have never

         13  been allowed to be on the surface of our City,

         14  particularly if our City have passed laws that are

         15  philosophically and legally committed to inclusion

         16  and elimination of discrimination against people

         17  with disabilities.

         18                 MR. GRESHMAN: Well, on the buses, I'm

         19  not a party to those negotiations so I can't speak

         20  to them in any specific way.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I agree, there is

         22  no way those buses should have been on the street in

         23  the first place. They were bought used, but they had

         24  a long accepted usable life, nonetheless, and by the

         25  time they were introduced, should have been either
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          2  new buses or retrofitted to be accessible. And I

          3  heard Mr. Imperatore say that by 2006 they would

          4  meet federal standards on what he believes is the

          5  federal schedule.

          6                 Well, again, I don't know why New

          7  York City can't impose something tighter. It's very

          8  clear in the ADA. It says this in so many words,

          9  that it does not preclude more demanding, more

         10  protective, local laws. It says that in so many

         11  words. I believe the site is 42 US Code 12201B. I

         12  sent it to Maritza Bolanos, your counsel, awhile

         13  ago.

         14                 There's no reason why New York City

         15  can't ask more of the bus system than the ADA.

         16                 These are operating on our streets. I

         17  also don't understand why New York has no business

         18  in regulating them. They're operating in New York

         19  City, they run up and down Manhattan on both sides

         20  and across and back and forth. Certainly New York

         21  City can legislate about them.

         22                 I don't know why it's not regulating

         23  them but it can certainly legislate about them, and

         24  I encourage, I think that part of the bill is a

         25  great thing, too.

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Well, I thank you

          3  for making a comment on that.

          4                 The reason I ask you is because I am

          5  alarmed about the proliferation that I see of buses

          6  systems being put in place by New York University,

          7  by Fordham University, or by in this case the ferry

          8  system, and it's an alternative mass transportation

          9  system, to the one that we have to transport the

         10  particular people that they have, but each and every

         11  one of the buses that these people are putting in

         12  place are not wheelchair accessible.

         13                 MR. GRESHAM: New York City can

         14  certainly regulate that and legislate about that.

         15                 Let's assume the ADA doesn't cover

         16  it, or it doesn't demand compliance now, let's

         17  assume that. I don't believe that would be correct

         18  in those cases but let's assume that, even if that

         19  were true, New York City can do something more

         20  demanding than the ADA.

         21                 The ADA says that in so many words.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 MR. GRESHAM: Thank you.

         25                 MS. BOLANOS: Our last panel of
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          2  witnesses are Dorothy Williams-Pereira, and Frieda

          3  Zames.

          4                 Anyone else who would like to testify

          5  now needs to fill out an appearance card, and you

          6  can come up here.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

          8  I'm here from Community Board 6.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You represent

         10  them.

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: I

         12  didn't know what this deal was, I didn't know what

         13  this subject was. I thought it was the subject of

         14  the 34th Street accessibility.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, it is on

         16  that. What happened is that the issue that Community

         17  Board 6 has been dealing with is inside of this

         18  issue of accessibility at the City level, but the

         19  issue that Community Board 6 has been maneuvering on

         20  34th Street and the pier in there, is subsumed in

         21  this bill, and this will resolve that problem

         22  completely.

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: I

         24  thought it had to do with the building.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The ferry?
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

          3  Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

          6  To shuttle the --

          7                 MS. BOLANOS: The passengers.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes. It's

          9  interconnected with it because this bill will

         10  regulate any facility that had to be built, will be

         11  built, or is built right now that is not wheelchair

         12  accessible.

         13                 Then you are in the right place and

         14  you came to make the right comments.

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         16  AUDIENCE: I came to find out.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Oh, to find out.

         18  Then you don't need to testify.

         19                 MS. BOLANOS: Please raise your right

         20  hand.

         21                 Do you swear that the testimony

         22  you're about to provide before this Committee is the

         23  whole truth and that you will answer Council Member

         24  questions truthfully?

         25                 MS. ZAMES: Yes.
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          2                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: Yes.

          3                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay. Please state your

          4  name and if you're here on behalf of an

          5  organization, before you begin your testimony, and

          6  we will begin with Mrs. Williams-Pereira.

          7                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: Okay. My name

          8  is Dorothy Williams-Pereria. I'm from the Citizens

          9  Action Team of Rockaway, as well as the vice

         10  president of Disabled in Action.

         11                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay. Pull your

         12  microphone up a little bit.

         13                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: I have a lot of

         14  problems with all this, because I come to these

         15  hearings and I've been involved with a lot of this

         16  in the past, and I'm beginning to get an impression

         17  that -- an impression -- I'm beginning to get

         18  convinced that the City itself and the agencies of

         19  the City have been deliberately and willfully

         20  disregarding the law. And that gives me a great deal

         21  of pain. I think that it causes us to have shame

         22  about our City.

         23                 We are an international City. We look

         24  on the world, we're one of the world cities, maybe

         25  Paris is the other one, you know, I mean we're a big
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          2  City in the world. We're not just a little city in

          3  New York State, we are an international city, and we

          4  have international airports, we have JFK, we have

          5  LaGuardia, we have Jersey City airports that we

          6  relate to, we're a metropolitan New York City, and

          7  we're just not, you know, some kind of little town

          8  somewhere that is not able to relate to the world

          9  and can't make laws or be involved in international

         10  relations that we certainly are, and maybe that's

         11  what we should do. Maybe we should start having this

         12  group outreach to the congress and to the UN or

         13  something, because it seems to me that there's some

         14  kind of awful thing going on here that isn't

         15  accessing the utilization of what our human beings

         16  need. And if we're going to make Governor's Island

         17  into a City University, that's not going to be

         18  accessible to the disabled. The disabled are not

         19  going to be educated that could be and we're going

         20  to lose people like Einstein, and I'm sure we have

         21  already. I've said this before, but I can't help

         22  saying it again. I'm sure we've lost a lot of human

         23  resources of people that can, and have made our

         24  lives better in the whole world already, and I think

         25  we should stop doing that.
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          2                 I think we have to make it so that we

          3  get the best out of everybody and that we give the

          4  best to everybody, and I don't see it as happening.

          5  And it scares me. It actually scares me. Where are

          6  we going that we don't worry about safety, that we

          7  don't worry about usability, we don't worry about if

          8  somebody falls in the Hudson River or I mean this is

          9  stupid.

         10                 I'm going to show you a map that

         11  you're all familiar with. I thank the MTA for these

         12  maps. You don't know how many times I've used this

         13  to testify I think, but this is Long Island and this

         14  is New York, and look at all the blue around this.

         15  That's water. We are a water city and a water Long

         16  Island. See how much blue? You'd be surprised how

         17  many ferries we could have and how we could get

         18  around in them. And look at this side, look at how

         19  blue. I have it upside down. Look how blue it is.

         20  Look at how much water we have. We are a waterway

         21  city, and we should be utilizing this resource and

         22  we should be making the best of it. I mean, it seems

         23  to me that another thing we should worry about is we

         24  should have that ounce of prevention before the

         25  pound of cure is very expensive, and we should not
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          2  put in inaccessibility that has to be changed to

          3  accessibility, because then they're going to be

          4  complaining that it's too expensive and they don't

          5  want to do it.

          6                 We shouldn't have it happen first. We

          7  should make sure that we get this going now and

          8  bravo to you for -- I hope you go to the UN and talk

          9  to them too, because the whole world should be

         10  accessible. Thank you.

         11                 MS. ZAMES: I'm Frieda Zames, and I'm

         12  from Disabled In Action. I just want to take off

         13  from Dorothy one thing. I go up to Albany a lot on

         14  Amtrak, and a good part of the trip is water. I just

         15  want to make that point. And, so, I think I heard

         16  that some day there may be a ferry to Albany, I can

         17  see it because there's water all the way, you know.

         18                 But actually, I decided to testify

         19  because of a totally different issue, and I hope you

         20  don't mind, but when I came I asked where is the

         21  accessible bathroom? And they said, oh, we've got to

         22  get the key. Well, I waited almost an hour. They

         23  never found the key. They finally decided to take me

         24  up to the 15th floor. And I just want to make the

         25  point, I said, "why is the bathroom locked? Why not
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          2  keep it open? There's a lock inside, use the lock

          3  inside, and let people use the bathroom. Why do we

          4  want a bathroom that's not used?" Well, they said,

          5  "well, this is for people with disabilities. We

          6  want this to be a special bathroom."

          7                 And anyway, I just want to make one

          8  more point about this. Everything was nice about the

          9  bathroom except the toilet paper dispenser. I

         10  couldn't use it. It was so far out of the way that

         11  it was unusable.

         12                 You know, everything else was fine.

         13  So, I said, why don't you talk to people with

         14  disabilities before you make these decisions. It

         15  seems the key is lost, they can't find the key. They

         16  have a locked bathroom, and they explained for me

         17  the reason for this is a new set-up, that bathroom

         18  has never been used, and they weren't ready for us.

         19  So, I just wanted to testify about this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: For your

         21  information it's true that this was not ready for

         22  you because you're not supposed to be here, I'm not

         23  supposed to be here. Then that is true, but that

         24  doesn't justify that that bathroom key don't exist.

         25  And more important enough that the door is closed.

                                                            135

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  It should not be locked.

          3                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: I'd like to say

          4  something else. You hear about all the depression

          5  that all these people are having in the City now,

          6  and we've had September 11th and that's caused even

          7  more.

          8                 But I want to tell you something. You

          9  all should come down to Disabled In Action, because

         10  this is where I go to get cheered up. It sounds like

         11  they're a bunch or cranks when we go to hearings,

         12  but I have news for you, they are very alive, and

         13  they're very positive and they're very

         14  forward-going, and I think that you should all come

         15  down to DIA's parties and cheer yourself up, because

         16  this is where cheer-up is.

         17                 MS. ZAMES: And I just want to say one

         18  more thing.

         19                 This is why we're against lifts with

         20  keys, because very often they can't find the key and

         21  we can't get in. Or there's a problem with it. You

         22  know, there's all kinds of problems with lifts. I

         23  mean, so many things can go wrong. So, we always,

         24  you know, push for ramps.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I'm expecting you
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          2  to testify on this bill now.

          3                 I was listening to everything that

          4  you're telling me and I appreciate it.

          5                 MS. ZAMES: I just want to say our

          6  group, Disabled In Action, strongly supports the

          7  bill. We've been supporting it since 1994. We ran

          8  into, we struggled with it, with the Giuliani

          9  Administration. We asked every time we went to a

         10  Transportation meeting, we asked could somebody talk

         11  about ferries, and they got rid of the

         12  Transportation Disabled Committee, which is a

         13  Committee that deals with transportation issues that

         14  the City deals with. The Committee that deals with

         15  MTA issues, I would ask there, could we have a ferry

         16  person come and talk, because we need to talk about

         17  ferries, there's a lot of ferry problems. And they

         18  said, well, this is MTA, we don't deal with City

         19  issues, that should be somewhere else.

         20                 So, you know, and we strongly support

         21  your committee on your various committees -- your

         22  various issues. This is a very important committee.

         23  It has changed the life of New York City.

         24                 New York City, for the first time, is

         25  really able to deal with problems in the disability
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          2  community. Otherwise, the only avenue we had was

          3  demonstrations and lawsuits, because nobody would

          4  listen to us.

          5                 You know, it was very hard to get

          6  people to listen to us. And we would have to beg a

          7  City hearing to allow us in if there was an issue,

          8  and then we'd be ignored even if we got in. You

          9  know, so it's really very, very important. I don't

         10  know, Margarita, if you have any idea how important

         11  this Committee is. I know how important it is.

         12                 And as far as ferries, the ferry can

         13  take the place of a subway to a great extent. I

         14  mean, not totally but to a great extent. We have

         15  enormous trouble traveling from borough to borough.

         16                 I have a car, I don't use it much

         17  anymore, I'm thinking of giving it up. I want to

         18  have other ways to get around. My sister lives in

         19  Brooklyn. I need a way to get to her. I want to be

         20  able to go various places. I need those ferries. We

         21  all need those ferries, you know. So, I can't, you

         22  know, transportation is so important, it has changed

         23  the lives of many of us, being able to use scooters

         24  and being in wheelchairs and being able to motorize

         25  wheelchairs, and being able to get on to buses, the
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          2  ferries will make that extra leap. We'll be able to

          3  get not only to other boroughs, but to Jersey and to

          4  Connecticut and maybe to Albany. Who knows, you

          5  know.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I thank you for

          7  your testimony. This hearing is going to conclude

          8  today, I just want to put for the purpose of the

          9  record the following thing. The testimony that you

         10  provided to us, it was very critical and I want to

         11  make clear why. I have been saying to this

         12  Committee, and to the Administration and to the

         13  Council members that having the right to have access

         14  to the ferry is not enough.

         15                 Why it's not enough because precisely

         16  the testimony that you provide to this Committee.

         17  The testimony that you're putting in the record in

         18  here about the treatment that you receive from a

         19  captain, could be another captain is not going to

         20  treat you that way, but none of that is necessary if

         21  we have a ferry system that is totally wheelchair

         22  accessible, because you don't have to depend on the

         23  mood of anybody, or somebody need or not being

         24  medicated on that particular day to be able to

         25  approve appropriately to the public.
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          2                 Also, this bill is critical because

          3  people like you who would like to travel from one

          4  side to the river to the other, don't need to depend

          5  necessarily in the Path train.

          6                 If you live in the village and you

          7  need to take this subway to connect to the Path

          8  train, you cannot do that because the connection

          9  doesn't exist.

         10                 Therefore, it is critical for us to

         11  understand that this bill is not about simply

         12  regulating an industry, this bill is about

         13  fulfilling a promise that was made by this City, by

         14  this nation, to disabled people, when they pass the

         15  ADA laws.

         16                 And the promise was that we are going

         17  to change our ways, that we no longer will be

         18  participants of a philosophy that exclude people and

         19  a philosophy that create segregation. We made that

         20  commitment, and in not making the ferry system

         21  wheelchair accessible from the beginning, what we're

         22  saying is remember when we pass ADA, we were not

         23  telling you the truth. We still believe in

         24  segregation, we still believe that discrimination is

         25  okay, when we allow this type of system to be put in
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          2  place. Come on, we know better, and we know very

          3  clear that the subway system is not wheelchair

          4  accessible and it's not going to be, and we also

          5  know if we're putting in place a surface

          6  transportation system, that is calling in this case

          7  the ferry system, we know, now we know the truth

          8  that it's illegal to discriminate, that it's illegal

          9  to segregate, that it's not right for America to

         10  exclude part of the citizens based on the disability

         11  that we have, and if we hold to be true, the

         12  constitution of this nation, then we should

         13  therefore, as a member of this City government, not

         14  to allow a transportation system to borne and allow

         15  it to exist, because it's privately-owned and I

         16  don't need to regulate it.

         17                 What nonsense is that? That means

         18  that if I have a club that is privately-owned, I can

         19  allow black people not to come in because it's

         20  privately owned and that is okay. Think about it.

         21  That's what we're saying when we talk about people

         22  with disabilities. It is okay to segregate, and it

         23  is okay not to fulfill the promise made on the ADA

         24  laws.

         25                 With that, and without no more, I
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          2  want to invite you to look into this piece of news

          3  that came in the newspapers. I want to make clear

          4  that we're working very hard to make sure that this

          5  position, that expose' of what's going on in

          6  transportation for disabled people is not happening.

          7  Then we will continue our work, and read these

          8  articles. They are pretty good.

          9                 Thank you for coming today here. This

         10  hearing is recessed. We will continue to look into

         11  this issue. I want to make you aware that we are

         12  looking into more refined piece of legislation that

         13  was introduced, and do some tuning into the piece of

         14  legislation after meeting with the owners of the

         15  ferries, we're going to do some fixing in there, and

         16  we're looking forward to have the tour with the

         17  Commissioner of Transportation with the pier system.

         18  With that I am not saying that I will not be willing

         19  to proceed with this legislation, and voted on. I'm

         20  only saying that I will be glad to work with the

         21  Administration and see what I can do in there, and

         22  if I see clear commitment to work on my committee on

         23  this, I will be willing to wait. But if I don't see

         24  no commitment, and I continue to see lack of

         25  cooperation, I will not have a problem in passing
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          2  this piece of legislation by next month, if I have

          3  to.

          4                 Thank you very much. I believe that

          5  in order for people to dance Tango, they should

          6  dance together. I really believe that. And I am the

          7  kind of a person who like to work with people. I'm

          8  also the kind of a person that when I see that I

          9  offered that opportunity and that opportunity is not

         10  taken, then I become a tornado and I pass what I

         11  have to pass. Then believe me, one way or another

         12  we're going to accomplish our goal in here.

         13                 Thank you. And thank you for coming.

         14  This hearing is recessed.

         15                 (Hearing recessed at 3:50 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 24th day of February 2003.
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